
 

       
24 August 2016 
Company Announcements Office   Exchange Centre  Level 6  20 Bridge Street  Sydney NSW 2000   AUSTRALIA   
Dear Sir/Madam 
Genesis Energy Ltd (ASX/NZX: GNE) – ASX Listing Rule 1.15.3 
This letter is to confirm that for the purposes of ASX Listing Rule 1.15.3, Genesis Energy Limited has complied with NZX Listing Rules during FY 2016. 
Yours faithfully 

 
 
 

 Maureen Shaddick Company Secretary    About Genesis Energy 
Genesis Energy (NZX: GNE) is a diversified New Zealand energy company. It sells electricity, reticulated 
natural gas and LPG through its retail brands of Genesis Energy and Energy Online. It is New Zealand’s 
largest energy retailer with around 646,000 customer accounts. The Company generates electricity 
from a diverse portfolio of thermal and renewable generation assets located in different parts of the 
country. Genesis Energy also has a 31% interest in the Kupe Joint Venture, which owns the Kupe Oil 
and Gas Field offshore of Taranaki, New Zealand. Genesis Energy had revenue of $NZ2bn during the 
12 months ended 30 June 2016. More information can be found at www.genesisenergy.co.nz 
 
 

Genesis Energy Limited The Genesis Energy Building 660 Great South Road Greenlane Auckland 1546 New Zealand  Telephone: +64 9 951 9120  Fax: +64 9 580 4898  



 

 
MARKET RELEASE Date: 24 August 2016 
Genesis Energy Limited (GNE): Core business provides for future growth 
  Year ended 30 June 2016  Change year on year 

EBITDAFi $335.3 million Down 3% from $344.8 million Net Profit $184 million Up 76% from $104.8 million Earnings per share 18.4 cents Up 76% from  10.5 cents Dividend per share 16.4 cents Up 3% from 16.0 cents Free cash flowii $200 million Up 1% from $197.7 million Stay in business capital iii expenditure $39.7 million Down 9% from $43.6 million 
 Against a market back drop of high competition for customers, reduced oil and gas prices and above average temperatures, Genesis Energy released its full year results for the twelve months ended  30 June 2016.  Genesis Energy’s Chair, Dame Jenny Shipley, said that the Board of Directors was satisfied with the overall performance of the Company in what has been a challenging year.   “Genesis Energy continues to perform well in a constantly and quickly evolving energy market. The earnings (EBITDAF) result of $335.3 million reflects a determination by the Board to drive improved cost control and efficiencies to offset the external influences impacting on the business as it looks to the future” she said.  During the year the Board of Directors welcomed Genesis Energy’s new Chief Executive Marc England, who joined the Company on 2 May 2016, replacing Albert Brantley who left the Company in April 2016.   
Marc said it is “pleasing to lead a Company determined to meet the changing needs of customers. While external market conditions remain challenging, the Company continued to hold its own in a competitive retail market and the Company continued to achieve strong cash flows and earnings from its core businesses”.  “The Company’s diverse assets and strong customer base provides a stable platform from which to meet a changing energy market. With the back drop of warm autumns, wet South Island catchments and low international oil prices, our attention is firmly fixed on operating efficiently and growing new sources of revenue that are not weather or external-market dependent,” he said.  Marc said the Company’s recent Executive re-structure was the first phase of a longer term plan to create greater integration between business units, to take advantage of emerging energy technologies and to re-shape the business so it could execute its strategies at speed.   “In the short term, we are determined to extract more value from our existing operations while we implement our plans to deliver new services for our customers and thrive in the evolving energy market,” he said.  Dame Jenny confirmed that a final dividend of 8.2 cents per share will be paid on 14 October 2016, with a record date of 30 September 2016. A further update and guidance for FY17 will be provided at the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting on 19 October 2016.  



 

Further information on the Company’s operations and finance can be found in the Investor Presentation of the Full Year Results at nzx.com/markets/NZSX/securities/GNE and www.genesisenergy.co.nz/presentations.   ENDS  For media enquiries, please contact: Richard Gordon Public Affairs Manager Genesis Energy P: 09 951 9280 M: 021 681 305  For investor relations enquiries, please contact: Rodney Deacon Group Manager Strategy and Investor Relations Genesis Energy P: 09 571 4970 M: 021 631 074   About Genesis Energy  Genesis Energy (NZX: GNE) is a diversified New Zealand energy company. It sells electricity, reticulated natural gas and LPG through its retail brands of Genesis Energy and Energy Online. It is New Zealand’s largest energy retailer with around 646,000 customer accounts. The Company generates electricity from a diverse portfolio of thermal and renewable generation assets located in different parts of the country. Genesis Energy also has a 31% interest in the Kupe Joint Venture, which owns the Kupe Oil and Gas Field offshore of Taranaki, New Zealand. Genesis Energy had revenue of $NZ2bn during the 12 months ended 30 June 2016. More information can be found at www.genesisenergy.co.nz   
i Earnings before finance expense, income tax, depreciation, depletion, amortisation, impairment, fair value changes and other gains and losses 
ii Free Cash Flow is EBITDAF, less finance expense, tax paid and stay in business capital expenditure. 
iii Stay in business capital expenditure is the capital expenditure required to maintain ongoing asset management and life-cycle maintenance of the Company’s asset portfolio. 
 

                                                           



  Genesis Energy Limited     
 
 Appendix 1 
GENESIS ENERGY LIMITED 
INCORPORATED IN NEW ZEALAND 
 
FULL YEAR REPORT 
 
Reporting period  twelve months to 30 June 2016 
Previous reporting period twelve months to 30 June 2015 
 
RESULTS FOR ANNOUNCEMENT TO THE MARKET – 24 AUGUST 2016 
 
Revenue and Net Profit 30 June 2016 

Amount 
($NZ million) 

30 June 2015 
Amount 

($NZ million) Percentage 
change 

Revenues from ordinary activities 2,011.3 2,097.6 -4% 
Profit (loss) from ordinary activities 
after tax attributable to security holder. 184.2 104.8 76% 
Net profit (loss) attributable to security 
holders 184.2 104.8 76% 
 
 
Dividends – Ordinary Shares 30 June 2016 

Amount per 
security 

(NZ cents) 

30 June 2015 
Amount per 

security 
(NZ cents) Percentage 

change 
Final dividend 8.2 8.0 2.5% 
Final dividend - imputed amount 2.55 3.11 -18% 
 
Record date: 30 September 2016 
Payment date: 14 October 2016 
 
COMMENTARY ON RESULTS FOR THE PERIOD 
For commentary on the results please refer to the results presentation attached. 
 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
The Appendix 1 form should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statement 
for the year ended 30 June 2016 as attached. 
 
Net Tangible Assets – Ordinary Shares 30 June 2016 

Amount per 
security 

(NZ cents) 

30 June 2015 
Amount per 

security 
(NZ cents) Percentage 

change 
Net Tangible Asset 186 170 9% 
 
 



  Genesis Energy Limited     
 
 Appendix 4E 
GENESIS ENERGY LIMITED 
(ARBN 149 509 599) 
INCORPORATED IN NEW ZEALAND 
 
FULL YEAR REPORT 
 
Reporting period  twelve months to 30 June 2016 
Previous reporting period twelve months to 30 June 2015 
 
RESULTS FOR ANNOUNCEMENT TO THE MARKET – 24 AUGUST 2016 
 
Revenue and Net Profit 30 June 2016 

Amount 
($NZ million) 

30 June 2015 
Amount 

($NZ million) Percentage 
change 

Revenues from ordinary activities 2,011.3 2,097.6 -4% 
Profit (loss) from ordinary activities 
after tax attributable to security holder. 184.2 104.8 76% 
Net profit (loss) attributable to security 
holders 184.2 104.8 76% 
 
Dividends – Ordinary Shares 30 June 2016 

Amount per 
security 

(NZ cents) 

30 June 2015 
Amount per 

security 
(NZ cents) Percentage 

change 
Final dividend 8.2 8.0 2.5% 
Final dividend - imputed amount 2.55 3.11 -18% 
 
Record date: 30 September 2016 
Payment date: 14 October 2016 
 
COMMENTARY ON RESULTS FOR THE PERIOD 
For commentary on the results please refer to the results presentation attached. 
 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
The Appendix 4E should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statement for 
the year ended 30 June 2016 as attached. 
 
Net Tangible Assets – Ordinary Shares 30 June 2016 

Amount per 
security 

(NZ cents) 

30 June 2015 
Amount per 

security 
(NZ cents) Percentage 

change 
Net Tangible Asset 186 170 9% 
 



APPENDIX 7 – NZSX Listing Rules
Number of pages including this one
(Please provide any other relevant

NZSX Listing Rule 7.12.2. For rights, NZSX Listing Rules 7.10.9 and 7.10.10.  details on additional pages)
For change to allotment, NZSX Listing Rule 7.12.1, a separate advice is required.
Full name
of Issuer
Name of officer authorised to Authority for event,
make this notice e.g. Directors' resolution

Contact phone Contact fax
number number Date
Nature of event Bonus If ticked, Rights Issue
Tick as appropriate Issue state whether: Taxable / Non Taxable Conversion Interest Renouncable

Rights Issue Capital Call Dividend If ticked, state Full
non-renouncable change X whether: Interim Year X Special DRP Applies

EXISTING securities affected by this If more than one security is affected by the event, use a separate form.
Description of the ISIN
class of securities

If unknown, contact NZX
Details of securities issued pursuant to this event If more than one class of security is to be issued, use a separate form for each class.
Description of the ISIN
class of securities

If unknown, contact NZX
Number of Securities to Minimum Ratio, e.g
be issued following event Entitlement   1   for    2   for
Conversion, Maturity, Call Treatment of Fractions
Payable or Exercise Date

Tick if provide an
pari passu OR explanation

Strike price per security for any issue in lieu or date of the
Strike Price available. ranking
Monies Associated with Event Dividend payable, Call payable, Exercise price, Conversion price, Redemption price, Application money.

Source of
Amount per security Payment
(does not include any excluded income)
Excluded income per security
(only applicable to listed PIEs)

Supplementary Amount per security
Currency dividend in dollars and cents

details -
NZSX Listing Rule 7.12.7

Total monies
Taxation Amount per Security in Dollars and cents to six decimal places
In the case of a taxable bonus Resident Imputation Credits
issue state strike price Withholding Tax (Give details)

Foreign FDP Credits
Withholding Tax (Give details)

Timing (Refer Appendix 8 in the NZSX Listing Rules)
Record Date 5pm Application Date
For calculation of entitlements - Also, Call Payable, Dividend /

Interest Payable, Exercise Date,
Conversion Date. In the case
of applications this must be the
last business day of the week.

Notice Date Allotment Date
Entitlement letters, call notices, For the issue of new securities.
conversion notices mailed Must be within 5 business days

of application closing date.
OFFICE USE ONLY
Ex Date:
Commence Quoting Rights: Security Code:
Cease Quoting Rights 5pm:
Commence Quoting New Securities: Security Code:
Cease Quoting Old Security 5pm:

30 September 2016 14 October 2016

$ $0.009968 per share $0.0255 per share

$

NZ Dollars $0.011576 per share
$82,000,000 Date Payable 14 October, 2016

In dollars and cents
Retained Earnings$0.082 per share

Enter N/A if not 
applicable

08 2016

Ordinary Shares NZGNEE0001S7

EMAIL: announce@nzx.com
Notice of event affecting securities

Genesis Energy Limited
Maureen Shaddick, General Counsel and 
Company Secretary Directors' resolutions

09 951 9304 24
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Consolidated comprehensive income statement
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Note
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Operating revenue
Electricity revenue 1,676.7 1,730.4 

Gas revenue 242.4 282.9 

Petroleum revenue 53.8 64.7 

Other revenue 4 38.4 19.6 

2,011.3 2,097.6 

Operating expenses
Electricity purchases, transmission and distribution (910.9) (953.7)

Gas purchases, transmission and distribution (252.0) (297.1)

Petroleum production, marketing and distribution (23.0) (26.1)

Fuels consumed (196.3) (187.4)

Employee benefits 4 (81.8) (80.6)

Other operating expenses 4 (212.0) (207.9)

(1,676.0) (1,752.8)

Earnings before net finance expense, income tax, depreciation, depletion, amortisation, 
impairment, fair value changes and other gains and losses 335.3 344.8

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 5 (127.5) (155.7)

Impairment of non-current assets 15 –   (14.0)

Revaluation of generation assets 15 138.0 –

Change in fair value of financial instruments 6 (26.6) 32.1 

Other gains (losses) (3.0) (0.2)

(19.1) (137.8)

Profit before net finance expense and income tax 316.2 207.0

Finance revenue 2.0 1.3 

Finance expense 7 (65.2) (68.0)

Profit before income tax 253.0 140.3

Income tax (expense) 8 (68.8) (35.5)

Net profit for the year 184.2 104.8

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Change in cash flow hedge reserve 24 (33.6) (20.1)

Income tax credit (expense) relating to items that may be reclassified 8 9.4 5.6 

Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (24.2) (14.5)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Change in asset revaluation reserve 15 232.6 –

Income tax (expense) relating to items that will not be reclassified 8 (65.1) –

Total items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 167.5 –

Total other comprehensive income (expense) for the year 143.3 (14.5)

Total comprehensive income for the year 327.5 90.3

Earnings per share from operations attributable to shareholders of the Parent
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents) 9 18.43 10.49

The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Note

Share 
capital 

$ million

Share-based 
payments 

reserve 
$ million

Asset 
revaluation 

reserve 
$ million

Cash flow 
hedge reserve 

$ million

Retained 
earnings 
$ million

Total 
$ million

Balance as at 1 July 2014 539.7  –   805.8 (5.1) 540.3 1,880.7 

Net profit for the year  –    –    –    –   104.8 104.8 

Other comprehensive income
Change in cash flow hedge reserve 24  –    –    –   (20.1)  –   (20.1)

Income tax credit relating to other 
comprehensive income 8  –    –    –   5.6  –   5.6 

Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year  –    –    –   (14.5) 104.8 90.3 

Share-based payments 12  –   0.3  –    –    –   0.3 

Dividends 10  –    –    –    –   (145.9) (145.9)

Balance as at 30 June 2015 539.7 0.3 805.8 (19.6) 499.2 1,825.4 

Net profit for the year  –    –    –    –   184.2 184.2 

Other comprehensive income
Change in cash flow hedge reserve 24  –    –    –   (33.6)  –   (33.6)

Change in asset revaluation reserve 15  –    –   232.6  –    –   232.6 

Income tax (expense)/credit relating to other 
comprehensive income 8  –    –   (65.1) 9.4  –   (55.7)

Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year  –    –   167.5 (24.2) 184.2 327.5 

Revaluation reserve reclassified to retained earnings 
on disposal of assets  –    –   (0.4)  –   0.4  –   

Share-based payments 12  –   0.2  –    –    –   0.2 

Dividends 10  –    –    –    –   (161.9) (161.9)

Balance as at 30 June 2016 539.7 0.5 972.9 (43.8) 521.9 1,991.2 



Consolidated balance sheet
As at 30 June 2016

Note
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 34.9 21.0 

Receivables and prepayments 13 188.8 187.7 

Inventories 14 79.3 80.0 

Assets held for sale  –   3.1 

Intangible assets 17 4.8 4.3 

Tax receivable 4.1 16.2 

Derivatives 24 19.9 34.2 

Total current assets 331.8 346.5 

Non-current assets
Receivables and prepayments 13 4.2 0.9 

Inventories 14  –   24.4 

Property, plant and equipment 15 2,988.0 2,682.5 

Oil and gas assets 16 267.5 292.4 

Intangible assets 17 133.7 127.4 

Derivatives 24 53.0 53.9 

Total non-current assets 3,446.4 3,181.5 

Total assets 3,778.2 3,528.0 

Current liabilities
Payables and accruals 21 166.8 158.3 

Borrowings 22 136.2 117.8 

Provisions 23 15.3 12.3 

Derivatives 24 27.6 21.5 

Total current liabilities 345.9 309.9 

Non-current liabilities
Payables and accruals 21 0.8 0.7 

Borrowings 22 776.0 840.4 

Provisions 23 123.2 123.7 

Deferred tax liability 8 484.3 397.2 

Derivatives 24 56.8 30.7 

Total non-current liabilities 1,441.1 1,392.7 

Total liabilities 1,787.0 1,702.6 

Shareholders' equity
Share capital 11 539.7 539.7 

Reserves 1,451.5 1,285.7 

Total equity 1,991.2 1,825.4 

Total equity and liabilities 3,778.2 3,528.0 

The Directors of Genesis Energy Limited authorise these financial statements for issue on behalf of the Board.

Rt Hon Dame Jenny Shipley, DNZM Joanna Perry, MNZM 
Chairman of the Board Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee
Date: 23 August 2016 Date: 23 August 2016

The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 30 June 2016

2016 
$ million

2015 
$ million

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash was provided from:
Receipts from customers 2,009.2 2,122.0 

Interest received 2.0 1.3 

Tax received 20.9  –   

2,032.1 2,123.3 

Cash was applied to:
Payments to suppliers and related parties 1,578.7 1,687.6 

Payments to employees 82.6 81.0 

Tax paid 46.0 36.2 

1,707.3 1,804.8 

Net cash inflows from operating activities 324.8 318.5 

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash was provided from:
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 6.4 1.3 

6.4 1.3 

Cash was applied to:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 19.1 35.5 

Purchase of oil and gas assets 8.8 4.1 

Purchase of intangibles (excluding emission units and deferred customer acquisition costs) 10.6 10.3 

38.5 49.9 

Net cash (outflows) from investing activities (32.1) (48.6)

Cash flows from financing activities
Cash was provided from:
Proceeds from borrowings 100.0 193.0 

100.0 193.0 

Cash was applied to:
Repayment of borrowings 155.0 256.1 

Interest paid and other finance charges 61.9 61.6 

Repayment of principal on finance lease liabilities  –   1.6 

Dividends 161.9 145.9 

378.8 465.2 

Net cash (outflows) from financing activities (278.8) (272.2)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13.9 (2.3)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July 21.0 23.3 

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 34.9 21.0 

The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



Consolidated cash flow statement (continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Reconciliation of net profit to net cash inflow from operating activities Note
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Net profit for the year 184.2 104.8 

Items classified as investing/financing activities
Net (gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.3) 2.5 

Interest and other finance charges paid 59.1 61.8 

58.8 64.3 

Non-cash items
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation expense 5 127.5 155.7 

Revaluation of generation assets 15 (138.0)  –   

Impairment of non-current assets 15  –   14.0 

Change in fair value of financial instruments 6 26.6 (32.1)

Deferred tax expense 8 31.4 18.6 

Change in capital expenditure accruals (4.6) 1.9 

Change in rehabilitation and contractual arrangement provisions 1.7 (0.3)

Other non-cash items (0.8) 2.0 

43.8 159.8 

Movements in working capital
Change in receivables and prepayments (4.4) 28.7 

Change in inventories 25.1 23.5 

Change in emission units on hand (2.0) (2.0)

Change in deferred customer acquisition costs (3.9)  –   

Change in payables and accruals 8.6 (36.5)

Change in tax receivable/payable 12.1 (19.6)

Change in provisions 2.5 (4.5)

38.0 (10.4)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 324.8 318.5 

The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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1. General information
Genesis Energy Limited (the ‘Parent’) is a 
company registered under the Companies 
Act 1993. The Parent is majority owned by 
Her Majesty the Queen in Right of New 
Zealand (the ‘Crown’) and is listed on the 
NZSX, NZDX and ASX. The Parent, as a 
mixed ownership model company, is bound 
by the requirements of the Public Finance 
Act 1989. The liabilities of the Parent are not 
guaranteed in any way by the Crown. The 
Parent is an FMC Reporting Entity under 
the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013 
and the Financial Reporting Act 2013.
The consolidated financial statements 
comprise the Parent, its subsidiaries and 
the Group’s interests in joint operations 
(together, the ‘Group’). The Group is 
designated as a profit-oriented entity for 
financial reporting purposes.
The Group’s core business is located in 
New Zealand and involves the generation of 
electricity, retailing and trading of energy, 
and the development and procurement of 
fuel sources. To support these functions, the 
Group’s scope of business includes retailing and 
trading of related complementary products 
designed to support its key energy business.

2. Basis of accounting
Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with and comply with New 
Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice (‘NZ GAAP’), New Zealand 
Equivalents to International Financial 
Reporting Standards (‘NZ IFRS’) and other 
applicable New Zealand Financial Reporting 
Standards as appropriate for profit-oriented 
entities. These financial statements comply 
with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (‘IFRS’).
The financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with the Financial Markets 
Conduct Act 2013, the Financial Reporting 
Act 2013 and the Companies Act 1993, 
and are presented in New Zealand dollars 
rounded to the nearest one hundred 
thousand. The accounting policies adopted in 
the preparation of these financial statements 
are set out below and in the relevant notes 
to the financial statements. These policies 
have been applied consistently to all years 
presented, unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements have been prepared 
under the historical-cost convention, 
modified by the revaluation of derivatives 
and generation assets.

The financial statements are prepared on a 
GST exclusive basis with the exception of 
receivables and payables, which include GST 
where GST has been invoiced.
Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all those entities (including 
structured entities) controlled by the Group. 
Control is achieved when the Parent has 
exposure or rights to variable returns and 
has the power to affect those returns. 
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date 
control is acquired. They are de-consolidated 
from the date control ceases. The acquisition 
method of accounting is used to account for 
the acquisition of subsidiaries. 
Joint operations
Where the Group invests in joint operations, 
the Group’s share of revenue, expenditure, 
assets and liabilities is included in the 
appropriate categories within the Group 
financial statements on a proportionate 
line-by-line basis. 
Transactions and balances eliminated 
on consolidation
Intercompany transactions, balances, 
revenue and expenditure between Group 
companies are eliminated on consolidation. 
Critical accounting estimates 
and judgements
The preparation of financial statements 
requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, revenues and expenses. 
The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on historical experience and 
various other factors that are reasonable 
under the circumstances. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognised in 
the period in which the estimate is revised if 
the revision affects only that period, or in the 
period of the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods.
Significant areas of estimation in these 
financial statements are as follows:
Valuation of generation assets
The Group’s generation assets are carried 
at fair value. The fair value is based on the 
present value of the estimated future cash 
flows of the assets. The key assumptions 
used in the valuation and the carrying value 
of generation assets are disclosed in note 15.

Depletion of oil and gas producing assets
Depletion of oil and gas producing assets 
is based on the proven reserves to which 
the assets relate. Proven reserve estimates 
can change over time. The proven reserve 
estimates used to deplete oil and gas 
producing assets and the carrying value of 
the assets are disclosed in note 16.
Valuation of rehabilitation and 
restoration provision
The financial statements include an estimate 
of the liability in relation to the abandonment 
and restoration of generation and oil and 
gas production sites. Such estimates are 
measured at the present value of the cash 
flows estimated to settle the obligation. The 
key assumptions used in the calculation and 
the carrying value of the rehabilitation and 
restoration provision are disclosed in note 23.
Valuation of electricity derivatives
The valuation of electricity derivatives 
classified as level three financial instruments 
is based on forecasted internally generated 
electricity price paths which incorporate a 
number of assumptions. The key assumptions 
used in the valuation and the carrying value of 
electricity derivatives classified as level three 
financial instruments are disclosed in note 26.
Impairment of assets
Assets that have indefinite useful lives 
are not subject to amortisation and are 
tested annually for impairment. Assets that 
are subject to depletion, depreciation or 
amortisation are reviewed for impairment 
annually, or whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. If an asset’s 
carrying value exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the difference is recognised as 
an impairment loss in profit or loss, except 
where the asset is carried at a revalued 
amount then it is treated as a revaluation 
decrease.
The recoverable amount is the higher of 
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell, and 
the asset’s value in use. In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value at a rate 
that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money. This discount rate 
is adjusted for the risks specific to the asset 
where the estimated cash flows have not 
been adjusted. 
For the purposes of assessing impairment, 
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for 
which there are separately identifiable cash 
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial 
assets other than goodwill that have been 
impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of 
the impairment at each reporting date.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2016



2. Basis of accounting (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently 
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset 
is increased to the revised estimate of its 
recoverable amount, but only to the extent 
the carrying amount of the asset at the date 
the impairment is reversed does not exceed 
what the amortised cost would have been 
had the impairment not been recognised. A 
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised 
in profit or loss immediately, unless the 
relevant asset is carried at fair value, in which 
case the reversal of the impairment loss is 
treated as a revaluation increase. Impairment 
of goodwill is not reversed.
Foreign currency transactions
Transactions denominated in a foreign 
currency are converted at the exchange rate 
in effect at the date of the transaction. At 
balance date monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated at the closing rate. Exchange gains 
and losses arising from these translations and 
the settlement of these items are recognised 
in profit or loss, except when deferred in 
equity where cash flow hedging is applied 
(refer to the derivatives accounting policy 
disclosed in note 24).
Statement of cash flows
The following definitions are used in the 
statement of cash flows:
Operating activities
Operating activities include all transactions 
and other events that are not investing or 
financing activities.
Investing activities
Investing activities are those activities 
relating to the acquisition, holding and 
disposal of property, plant and equipment, oil 
and gas assets, intangible assets (excluding 
emission units and deferred customer 
acquisition costs) and investments.
Financing activities
Financing activities are those activities that 
result in changes to the size and composition 
of the capital structure of the Group. They 
include both equity and debt not falling 
within the definition of cash. Dividends 
and interest paid in relation to the capital 
structure are included in financing activities.
Payments to suppliers and related parties 
disclosed in operating activities include the 
net amount of GST paid/received during the 
year. GST is disclosed on a net basis as the 
gross amounts do not provide meaningful 
information for financial statement purposes. 

Capital and reserves
Asset revaluation reserve
The asset revaluation reserve is used to 
record movements in the fair value of 
generation assets in accordance with the 
property, plant and equipment accounting 
policy disclosed in note 15.
Cash flow hedge reserve
The cash flow hedge reserve comprises 
the effective portion of the cumulative net 
change in the fair value of cash flow hedging 
instruments related to hedge transactions 
that have not yet occurred.
Share-based payments reserve
The share-based payments reserve is used to 
recognise the value of equity-settled share-
based payments provided to employees, 
including key management personnel, as part 
of their remuneration.
New accounting treatment
Genesis Energy has implemented new 
accounting treatments during the year to 
defer the recognition of incentives provided 
to customers and the cost of acquisition of 
customers. Due to the level of competition 
in the retail energy market, Genesis Energy 
increased its expenditure on acquisition 
costs and incentives to customers to stabilise 
and extract longer-term value from the 
retail customer base. Customer incentives 
such as account credits are included in the 
measurement of revenue and are spread over 
the length of the average customer tenure 
where there is evidence that the return from 
the customer over the amortisation period 
is positive, in line with the future revenue 
standard NZ IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers. Customer acquisition costs 
which are directly attributable to securing a 
particular customer contract, and meet the 
definition of an intangible asset under NZ IAS 
38 Intangible Assets, are now capitalised and 
amortised over the average customer tenure.
The new accounting treatment resulted in 
the recognition of a $7.0 million asset in 
receivables and prepayments and a $3.9 
million asset in intangibles at 30 June 2016 
(refer to notes 13 and 17).
There have been no significant changes 
in accounting policies or methods of 
computation since 30 June 2015.

Adoption of new and revised accounting 
standards, interpretations and amendments
There have been no new and revised 
accounting standards, interpretations or 
amendments effective during the year 
which have a material impact on the Group’s 
accounting policies or disclosures.
Accounting standards, interpretations and 
amendments in issue not yet effective
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments is effective 
for annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2018. The standard 
comprises three phases: phase one, 
Classification and Measurement; phase two, 
Impairment Methodology; and phase three, 
Hedge Accounting. Phases one and two are 
not expected to have a material impact on 
the Group’s financial statements. The impact 
of phase three has not been determined.
NZ IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers is effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018. The impact this standard will have on 
the Group’s financial statements has not 
been determined.
NZ IFRS 16 Leases is effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2019. The new standard eliminates 
the distinction between operating and 
finance leases for lessees and will result 
in lessees bringing most leases onto their 
balance sheets. The impact this standard will 
have on the Group’s financial statements has 
not been determined.
All other standards, interpretations and 
amendments approved but not yet 
effective in the current year are either not 
applicable to the Group or are not expected 
to have a material impact on the Group’s 
financial statements and, therefore, have 
not been discussed.
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3. Segment reporting
For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into four segments as follows:
Segment Activity

Customer experience Supply of energy (electricity, gas and LPG) and related services to end-user customers.

Energy management Generation and trading of electricity and related products. The segment includes electricity sales to the wholesale 
electricity market, derivatives entered into to fix the price of electricity, and wholesale gas and coal sales.

Oil and gas Exploration, development, production and sale of gas, LPG and light oil.

Corporate
Head office functions including new generation investigation and development, fuel management, information 
systems, human resources, finance, corporate relations, property management, legal and corporate governance. 
Corporate revenue is made up of property rental and miscellaneous income. 

The segments are based on the different products and services offered by the Group. No operating segments have been aggregated.

Year ended 30 June 2016 Customer 
experience 

$ million

Energy 
management 

$ million
Oil and gas 

$ million
 Corporate  

$ million

Inter-segment 
items 

$ million
Total 

$ million

Operating revenue
Electricity revenue 1,199.2 975.3  –  – (497.8) 1,676.7 

Gas revenue 153.0 136.4 53.9  – (100.9) 242.4 

Petroleum revenue  –  – 53.8  –  – 53.8 

Other revenue 10.2 26.9  – 1.3  – 38.4 

1,362.4 1,138.6 107.7 1.3 (598.7) 2,011.3 

Operating expenses
Electricity purchase, transmission and distribution (996.1) (412.6)  –  –  497.8 (910.9)

Gas purchase, transmission and distribution (123.5) (177.5)  –  –  49.0 (252.0)

Petroleum production, marketing and distribution  –  – (23.0)  –  – (23.0)

Fuel consumed  – (248.2)  –  –  51.9 (196.3)

Employee benefits (29.1) (31.7) (0.1) (20.9)  – (81.8)

Other operating expenses (111.0) (74.5) (4.2) (22.3)  – (212.0)

Earnings before net finance expense, income tax, 
depreciation, depletion, amortisation, impairment, 
fair value changes and other gains and losses

102.7 194.1 80.4 (41.9)  – 335.3 

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation (3.1) (81.8) (30.7) (11.9)  – (127.5)

Revaluation of generation assets  – 138.0  –  –  – 138.0 

Change in fair value of financial instruments  – (18.0) (3.3) (5.3)  – (26.6)

Other gains (losses) (0.2) (0.4) (0.4) (2.0)  – (3.0)

Profit (loss) before net finance expense and income tax 99.4 231.9 46.0 (61.1)  – 316.2 

Finance revenue 0.1  – 0.2 1.7  – 2.0 

Finance expense (0.3) (3.1) (3.0) (58.8)  – (65.2)

Profit (loss) before income tax 99.2 228.8 43.2 (118.2)  – 253.0 

Other segment information
Capital expenditure 5.3 14.4 8.9 11.2  – 39.7 



Year ended 30 June 2015 Customer 
experience 

$ million

Energy 
management 

$ million
Oil and gas 

$ million
 Corporate  

$ million

Inter-segment 
items 

$ million
Total 

$ million

Operating revenue
Electricity revenue 1,180.3 1,037.9  –  – (487.8) 1,730.4 

Gas revenue 149.1 188.3 59.3  – (113.8) 282.9 

Petroleum revenue  –  – 64.7  –  – 64.7 

Other revenue 9.0 9.1 0.4 1.1  – 19.6 

1,338.4 1,235.3 124.4 1.1 (601.6) 2,097.6 

Operating expenses
Electricity purchase, transmission and distribution (978.6) (462.9)  –  – 487.8 (953.7)

Gas purchase, transmission and distribution (125.0) (229.0)  –  – 56.9 (297.1)

Petroleum production, marketing and distribution  –  – (26.1)  –  – (26.1)

Fuel consumed  – (244.3)  –  – 56.9 (187.4)

Employee benefits (25.5) (28.4)  – (26.7)  – (80.6)

Other operating expenses (122.1) (69.6) (4.8) (11.4)  – (207.9)

Earnings before net finance expense, income tax, 
depreciation, depletion, amortisation, impairment, 
fair value changes and other gains and losses

87.2 201.1 93.5 (37.0)  – 344.8 

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation (3.0) (85.4) (55.3) (12.0)  – (155.7)

Impairment of non-current assets  – (13.1)  – (0.9)  – (14.0)

Change in fair value of financial instruments  – 29.4 4.7 (2.0)  – 32.1 

Other gains (losses)  – (0.2) 1.1 (1.1)  – (0.2)

Profit (loss) before net finance expense and income tax 84.2 131.8 44.0 (53.0)  – 207.0 

Finance revenue 0.1  – 0.2 1.0  – 1.3 

Finance expense (0.3) (3.3) (2.9) (61.5)  – (68.0)

Profit (loss) before income tax 84.0 128.5 41.3 (113.5)  – 140.3 

Other segment information
Capital expenditure 4.3 29.2 4.0 6.1  – 43.6 

Inter-segment revenue
Sales between segments is based on transfer prices developed in the context of long-term contracts. Inter-segment gas revenue includes the 
Group’s share of Kupe gas sales to Energy Management and gas on-sold from Energy Management to Customer Experience. 
Geographic information
All business segments operate within New Zealand.
Major customer information
The Group has no individual customers that account for 10 per cent or more of the Group’s external revenue (2015: none).

3. Segment reporting (continued)
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4. Other revenue and operating expenses

Note
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Other revenue includes:
Emission unit revenue from trading 21.0 3.8 

Other revenue 17.4 15.8 

38.4 19.6 

Operating expenses include:
Auditor's remuneration:
Audit of financial statements
– Review fees for interim financial statements (Deloitte) 0.1 0.1 

– Audit fees for annual financial statements (Deloitte) 0.5 0.4 

Directors' fees 0.8 0.8 

Bad debts 8.2 7.2 

Employee benefits expense – defined contributions 2.8 2.8 

Rental expenses on operating leases 8.3 8.0 

Onerous contracts 2.0 (3.2)

Reversal of inventory spares write-down 14 (6.9) (0.3)

Emission unit expenses from trading 15.5 2.9 

Other employee benefits and operating expenses 262.5 269.8 

293.8 288.5 

Employee benefits 81.8 80.6 

Other operating expenses 212.0 207.9 

293.8 288.5 

In addition to the services disclosed above, Deloitte completed the following work during the year: a fraud review and assisted with integrated 
reporting and trustee reporting (2015: trustee reporting). Total fees relating to the other services was $0.036 million (2015: $0.035 million).

5. Depreciation, depletion and amortisation

Note
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 85.4 88.6 

Depreciation and depletion of oil and gas assets 16 30.7 55.3 

Amortisation of intangibles (excluding amortisation of deferred customer acquisition costs) 17 11.4 11.8 

127.5 155.7 

6. Change in fair value of financial instruments

Note
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Change in fair value of derivatives – gain (loss) 24 (3.9) 33.3 

Fair value interest rate risk adjustment on borrowings – gain (loss) (22.7) (1.2)

(26.6) 32.1 

The change in the fair value of derivatives for the year mainly relates to the movement in the fair value of Cross-Currency Interest Rate Swaps 
(‘CCIRS’) ($22.0 million gain) offset by the movement in the fair value of electricity swaps and options ($17.7 million loss). The movement in the 
fair value of the CCIRS relates to movements in interest and foreign exchange rates between 30 June 2015 and balance date. The movement 
in the fair value of the CCIRS was offset by the change in the fair value interest rate risk adjustment on the United States Private Placement 
(‘USPP’) ($23.2 million loss). The net impact on net profit of the CCIRS and USPP was $1.2 million loss. The movement in the fair value of 
electricity swaps and options primarily reflects movements in the electricity price path between either the date the contract was entered into, 
if it is a new contract in the current year, or 30 June 2015 and balance date.



7. Finance expense

Note
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Interest on borrowings (excluding capital bonds) 46.0 49.1 

Interest on capital bonds 12.4 12.4 

Total interest on borrowings 58.4 61.5 

Other interest and finance charges 0.7 0.6 

Time value of money adjustments on provisions 23 6.1 6.2 

65.2 68.3 

Capitalised finance expenses 15  - (0.3)

65.2 68.0 

Weighted average capitalisation rate 6.2% 6.4%

Interest on borrowings, bank and facility fees and transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the 
effective interest rate method, unless such costs relate to funding capital work in progress. Time value of money adjustments on provisions is 
recognised in profit or loss up to the point the provision is used or released.
Finance expense on capital work in progress (qualifying assets) is capitalised during the construction period. The capitalisation rate used to 
determine the amount of finance expense to be capitalised is based on the weighted average finance expenses incurred by the Group.

8. Income tax
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Current tax
– Current year 41.8 37.6 

– Under (over) provided in prior periods (2.1) (1.1)

– Powerhouse depreciation determinations
– Thermal (2.3)  – 

– Hydroelectric  – (1.1)

– Tekapo Canal remediation project – settlement  – (18.5)

Deferred tax
– Current year 28.6 2.5 

– Under (over) provided in prior periods 5.4 0.3 

– Powerhouse depreciation determinations
– Thermal (2.6)  – 

– Hydroelectric  – (2.7)

– Tekapo Canal remediation project – settlement  – 18.5 

Income tax expense 68.8 35.5 

Current tax 37.4 16.9 

Deferred tax 31.4 18.6 

68.8 35.5 

Reconciliation of income tax expense on pre–tax accounting profit to income tax expense

Profit before income tax 253.0 140.3 

Income tax at 28% 70.8 39.3 

Tax effect of adjustments:
– Under (over) provided in prior periods 3.3 (0.8)

– Powerhouse depreciation determinations
– Thermal (4.9)  – 

– Hydroelectric  – (3.8)

– Non-deductible expenditure and other adjustments (0.4) 0.8 

68.8 35.5 
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Income tax is recognised in profit or loss unless it relates to other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the 
reporting period, together with any unpaid tax or adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax liability

Property, plant 
and equipment 

$ million

Oil and gas 
assets 

$ million
Provisions 

$ million

Finance lease 
liabilities 
$ million

Other 
$ million

Total 
$ million

Balance as at 1 July 2014 356.5 80.5 (34.0) (4.3) (14.5) 384.2 

Amount recognised in profit or loss 17.5 (10.1) (1.8) 0.8 12.2 18.6 

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income  –  –  –  – (5.6) (5.6)

Balance as at 30 June 2015 374.0 70.4 (35.8) (3.5) (7.9) 397.2 

Amount recognised in profit or loss 39.9 (4.1) (0.2) 0.8 (5.0) 31.4 

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 65.1  –  –  – (9.4) 55.7 

Balance as at 30 June 2016 479.0 66.3 (36.0) (2.7) (22.3) 484.3 

Deferred tax is calculated using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the 
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at 
the end of the reporting period.
Powerhouse depreciation determinations
Tax depreciation deductions were disallowed for buildings with estimated useful lives of 50 years or more from 1 July 2011. As a result, 
adjustments to deferred tax liabilities totalling $12.4 million were made in the 2010 and 2011 financial years relating to generation powerhouse 
assets, offices and leasehold improvements. 
On 25 March 2015, the Inland Revenue Department issued a Depreciation Determination for Hydroelectric Powerhouses which allows the 
Group to claim an annual depreciation deduction of two per cent on hydroelectric powerhouses; this applied retrospectively from the 2012 
income year. As a result, a $3.8 million adjustment was made to tax expense in the 2015 financial year, the majority of which related to reversing 
the 2010 and 2011 adjustments made when the change in tax depreciation on buildings was substantively enacted.
On 23 February 2016, the Inland Revenue Department issued a Depreciation Determination for Geothermal and Thermal Powerhouses which 
applied retrospectively from the 2012 income year. During 2016, agreement was reached with Inland Revenue on the apportionment of thermal 
powerhouses as depreciable plant foundations. As a result, a $4.9 million adjustment has been made to tax expense in the current year, the majority 
of which related to reversing the 2010 and 2011 adjustments made when the change in tax depreciation on buildings was substantively enacted.
Tekapo Canal Remediation Project
During 2015, a resolution was reached with Inland Revenue on the tax treatment of costs associated with the Tekapo Canal Remediation Project. 
The impact of the resolution resulted in an increase in current tax receivable and deferred tax liability of $18.5 million as at 30 June 2015.

9. Earnings per share
2016 2015

Numerator
Net profit for the year attributable to shareholders ($ million) 184.2 104.8 

Denominator
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (million units) 1,000.0 1,000.0 

Less weighted average number of Treasury shares (million units) (0.5) (0.5)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic and diluted earnings per share calculation (million units) 999.5 999.5 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents)  18.43  10.49 

8. Income tax (continued)



10. Dividends 
2016 2015

Imputation $ million
Cents 

per share Imputation $ million
Cents 

per share

Dividends paid during the year
Previous year's final dividend Fully imputed 80.0  8.00 Fully imputed 66.0  6.60 

Current year's interim dividend 80 per cent 81.9  8.19 Fully imputed 79.9  8.00 

161.9  16.19 145.9  14.60 

Dividends declared subsequent to balance date
Final dividend 80 per cent 82.0 8.20 Fully imputed 80.0 8.00 

Imputation credits
There are no imputation credits available for use as at 30 June 2016 (2015: $0.1 million), as the imputation account has a debit balance as of 
that date. The Parent will fund the deficiency in its imputation credit account as is required by 31 March 2017.

11. Share capital 
Share capital of $539.7 million is made up of 1,000 million ordinary authorised, issued and fully paid shares ($540.6 million) offset by 0.5 million 
($0.9 million) Treasury shares, giving a net share capital of 999.5 million shares ($539.7 million). There has been no change in share capital 
during the year (2015: no change).

12. Share–based payments
Long–term incentive plan
During the 2014 financial year, the Group implemented a long-term incentive (LTI) plan for senior executives and a Trust was established to 
administer the plan (refer to note 18). The Trust acquired shares in the Parent; these shares were recorded as Treasury shares in the Group (refer 
to note 11). Under the plan, senior executives purchase shares at market value, funded by interest-free loans from the Parent. The shares are 
held on trust by the Trustee of the LTI plan until the end of the vesting period. If the shares vest, each executive is entitled to a cash amount 
which, after deduction for tax, is equal to the outstanding loan balance on day one for the shares which have vested. That cash amount must be 
applied towards repayment of their loan balance and the corresponding shares are released by the Trustee back to the executive.
Vesting of shares is dependent on continued employment through the vesting period and on the Group achieving a positive total shareholder return 
over the period and the Group’s performance relative to the benchmark peer group. If the Group’s total shareholder return performance over the 
vesting period exceeds the 50th percentile total shareholder return of the benchmark peer group, 50 per cent of the shares will vest; 100 per cent 
of an executive’s shares will vest upon meeting the performance of the 75th percentile of the benchmark peer group, with vesting on a straight-line 
basis between these two points. In the event that the total shareholder return is negative over the period or is less than the 50th percentile of the 
benchmark peer group or if the participant ceases to be employed by the Group other than for qualifying reasons, no shares will vest and the shares 
will be forfeited to the Trustee without compensation, and the relevant executive will receive no benefits under the plan (unless the Board exercises its 
discretion to allow some or all of the shares to vest). The benchmark peer group comprises a selected number of companies listed on the NZX 50. 
The plan represents the grant of in-substance nil-price options to executives. The cost of the LTI is measured by reference to the fair value 
at grant date. The fair value of the options granted under the plan are estimated as at the date each grant is approved by the Board using an 
option pricing model that takes into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The estimated fair value of the 
in-substance nil-price options at grant date was $0.6 million. In accordance with the rules of the plan, the model simulates the Group’s total 
shareholder return and compares it against the peer group over the vesting period.
The cost of the LTI is recognised, together with a corresponding increase to the share-based payments reserve within equity, over the period in which 
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The total amount to be expensed is based on the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity 
instruments that will ultimately vest taking into consideration the likelihood that service conditions will be met multiplied by the initial fair value of each option. 
During the year, the Group granted 311,025 in-substance nil-price options to senior executives (2015: 30,812), and 322,790 were forfeited 
due to performance targets not being met (2015: none). The net expense for the year was negative $0.005 million (2015: $0.150 million).
Employee Share Scheme
During the 2015 financial year, the Group implemented an Employee Share Scheme (‘ESS’). The ESS allows Genesis Energy employees to 
purchase Genesis Energy shares and, subject to certain conditions, receive award shares at no additional cost. Each year, each eligible employee 
can choose an annual amount (from a minimum of $250 to a maximum of $5,000) they wish to invest from their after-tax pay. The annual 
amount is divided by the number of after-tax payments an employee will receive in the year and is then deducted from their monthly/fortnightly 
pay. The deduction is used to purchase shares at market value on a monthly basis. If the eligible employee remains employed by Genesis Energy 
for the applicable qualification period (three years), they will receive one free share (award share) for every two purchased shares acquired in the 
first scheme year of the qualification period which the eligible employee continues to hold at the end of the qualification period. 
If an employee leaves Genesis Energy, they receive all the shares already purchased with their pay deductions; however, in most circumstances, 
if an employee leaves within the three-year qualification period, they will not be entitled to receive any award shares. The equity-settled, share-
based payment expense is recognised over the three-year vesting period and is equivalent to the fair value of the award shares provided to the 
employee, calculated as at the grant date. The amount recognised as an expense takes into account an expectation of the number of employees 
who will leave during the three-year vesting period and will therefore forfeit their shares. At each balance date, the Group revises its estimates 
of the employees who have left or are expected to leave during the three-year period; the expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number 
of employees not completing or expected to complete the service condition. A corresponding entry is recognised in equity as a share-based 
payment reserve. The estimated fair value of the in-substance nil-price options at grant date was $0.8 million. During the year the Group 
expensed $0.204 million in relation to the scheme (2015: $0.080 million).
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13. Receivables and prepayments
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Trade receivables 93.6 99.4 

Accrued revenue 77.1 81.3 

Allowance for doubtful receivables (6.2) (6.4)

Deferred customer account credits 7.0  – 

171.5 174.3 

Emission units receivable 1.6 1.1 

Other receivables 8.6 1.8 

Prepayments 11.3 11.4 

Total 193.0 188.6 

Current 188.8 187.7 

Non-current 4.2 0.9 

Total 193.0 188.6 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of prompt-payment discounts. Revenue is recognised when 
the significant risks and rewards of ownership have passed or when the service has been rendered to the customer.
Trade receivables and accrued revenue are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost less any allowance 
for doubtful receivables. Trade receivables and accrued revenue which are known to be uncollectable are written off. An allowance for doubtful 
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect amounts due. The allowance for doubtful 
receivables is the difference between the carrying value and the estimated recoverable amount. 
Account credits given to customers as incentives are included in the measurement of revenue and are spread over the length of the average 
customer tenure where there is evidence that the return from the customer over the amortisation period is positive. 
Emission units receivable from the sale of gas, LPG and oil are accounted for in the period in which the sale is recognised.

14. Inventories
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Fuel 46.9 81.6 

Petroleum products 0.5 0.4 

Consumables and spare parts 27.0 20.1 

Emission units held for trading 4.9 2.3 

Total 79.3 104.4 

Current 79.3 80.0 

Non-current – 24.4 

Total 79.3 104.4 

Fuel, petroleum, consumables and spare parts are recognised at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted 
average cost basis which includes expenditure incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition, including shipping and 
handling. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Fuel inventories mainly consist of coal used in electricity production. The amount of fuel inventories (excluding natural gas) expensed during the 
year was $51.9 million (2015: $75.0 million).
Petroleum products consist of LPG and light crude oil held for resale, produced from the Kupe production facility. The amount of petroleum 
products expensed during the year was $17.5 million (2015: $28.5 million).
Consumables and spare parts are held to service or repair generating assets. Prior to 30 June 2016, consumables and spare parts relating to 
Huntly units 1–4 were written down when incurred as the fair value of these units was nil. The fair value of Huntly units 1–4 was positive at 
30 June 2016 (refer to note 15). The net realisable value of Huntly units 1–4 spares at 30 June 2016 was more than cost; as a result the spares 
have been written up to cost as at 30 June 2016. This has resulted in a $6.9 million increase in the carrying value of consumables and spare 
parts. Consumables and spare parts relating to Huntly unit 6 continue to be written down as incurred as the fair value of this unit is nil. 
Emission units held for trading purposes are initially measured at cost and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value. Changes in the fair 
value are recognised immediately in profit or loss within other gains (losses).



15. Property, plant and equipment

Note

Generation 
assets 

$ million

Buildings and 
improvements 

$ million

Other property, 
plant and 

equipment 
$ million

Capital work 
in progress 

$ million
Total 

$ million

Carrying value at 1 July 2014 2,689.9 1.6 30.7 36.6 2,758.8 

Additions 0.1  –  – 39.7 39.8 

Capitalised finance expenses 7  –  –  – 0.3 0.3 

Change in rehabilitation and contractual arrangement assets  –  –  – 1.8 1.8 

Transfer to (from) capital work in progress 26.5 0.1 7.3 (33.9)  – 

Transfer between asset categories (0.7)  – 0.5 0.2  – 

Transfer to intangible assets 17  –  –  – (9.4) (9.4)

Transfer to assets held for sale (3.1)  –  –  – (3.1)

Disposals (3.0)  – (0.1)  – (3.1)

Impairment  –  –  – (14.0) (14.0)

Depreciation expense 5 (81.7) (0.1) (6.8)  – (88.6)

Carrying value at 30 June 2015 2,628.0 1.6 31.6 21.3 2,682.5 

Additions  –  –  – 30.9 30.9 

Revaluation gains 370.6  –  –  – 370.6 

Change in rehabilitation and contractual arrangement assets  –  –  – 2.0 2.0 

Transfer to (from) capital work in progress 5.1 0.1 3.7 (8.9)  – 

Transfer between asset categories  –  – 0.6 (0.6)  – 

Transfer to intangible assets 17  –  – 0.6 (10.1) (9.5)

Disposals (1.8)  – (1.3)  – (3.1)

Depreciation expense 5 (78.4) (0.1) (6.9)  – (85.4)

Carrying value at 30 June 2016 2,923.5 1.6 28.3 34.6 2,988.0 

Summary of cost and accumulated depreciation 
and impairment
Cost 90.0 2.2 107.0 24.9 224.1 

Fair value 2,702.0  –  –  – 2,702.0 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment (164.0) (0.6) (75.4) (3.6) (243.6)

Carrying value at 30 June 2015 2,628.0 1.6 31.6 21.3 2,682.5 

Cost  – 2.2 111.0 34.6 147.8 

Fair value 2,923.5  –  –  – 2,923.5 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment  – (0.6) (82.7)  – (83.3)

Carrying value at 30 June 2016 2,923.5 1.6 28.3 34.6 2,988.0 

Generation assets
Generation assets include land, buildings, and plant and equipment associated with generation assets. Generation assets are recognised in the 
balance sheet at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of their revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation 
and impairment losses. The underlying assumptions used in the revaluation are reviewed annually and revaluations are performed with sufficient 
regularity, not exceeding five yearly, to ensure the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair 
values at the balance date.
Any increase in the revaluation of individual generation assets is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless it reverses a revaluation 
decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case it is recognised in profit or loss to the extent of the decrease 
previously recognised in profit or loss. A decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of individual generation assets is recognised in 
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the asset revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. 
Any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying value of the asset so that the gross carrying 
amount after revaluation equals the revalued amount.
Subsequent additions to generation assets are recognised at cost. Cost includes the consideration given to acquire the asset plus any other costs 
incurred in bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for its intended use including major inspection costs, resource consent and 
relationship agreement costs. The cost of assets constructed includes the cost of all materials and direct labour used in construction, resource 
consent costs, finance expenses and an appropriate proportion of applicable variable and fixed overheads. 
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Total generation assets were revalued at 30 June 2016 to $2,923.5 million resulting in a net increase on revaluation of $370.6 million.
The revaluation increase associated with Huntly units 1–4 and a portion of the revaluation increase for the Tekapo Power Scheme were 
recognised in profit or loss as they reversed previous revaluation losses recognised in 2009 and 2011 respectively. The total increase on 
revaluation recognised in profit or loss was $138.0 million. The remainder of the revaluation increase of $232.6 million was recognised in the 
revaluation reserve. The increase in fair value was principally driven by higher forecasted wholesale prices and generation volumes, a lower 
weighted average cost of capital used to discount future cash flows and positive cash flows from Huntly units 1–4 arising from the extension of 
their decommissioning date.
Fair value of generation assets is determined using a discounted cash flow model. The valuation was based on the present value of the estimated 
future cash flows of the assets. The valuation was prepared by Management and was independently reviewed by PricewaterhouseCoopers 
(‘PwC’), who have the appropriate qualifications and experience in valuing generation assets. The valuation was calculated by generating scheme 
except for the Huntly site where it was calculated by type of unit (units 1 to 4, unit 5 and unit 6). 
Valuation of generation assets requires significant judgement and therefore there is a range of reasonably possible assumptions that could be 
used in estimating the fair value of these assets.
The wholesale electricity price path is the key driver of changes in the valuation of generation assets. Changes in the wholesale electricity price 
path have a direct impact on generation volumes and operating costs. The wholesale electricity price path is based on an internally generated 
forecasted price path which is influenced by changes in electricity demand, hydrology and new generation build.  A material change in any one of 
these factors could result in a material change to the price path and, therefore, the fair value of generation assets. These factors are reviewed for 
reasonableness by senior management personnel who are responsible for the price path used by the business.  The price path assumes national 
demand growth based on the latest available industry information and Genesis Energy’s view of growth within various sectors of the economy. 
Forecast hydrology is based on 83 years of historical hydrological inflow data and new generation build assumptions are based on public 
announcements made by market participants and an assessment on the wholesale electricity prices required to support new generation build.  
The price path also assumes the on-going operation of New Zealand Aluminium Smelters Limited at Tiwai Point.
Other key assumptions in the valuation include: the current regulatory environment (including the New Zealand Emission Trading Scheme) 
being maintained, projected operational and capital expenditure, generation capacity and estimates of the lives of the assets.  
The significant unobservable inputs in the valuation model were:

Significant 
unobservable inputs Method of determination Sensitivity range

Impact on fair value 
of generation assets

Interrelationships between 
unobservable inputs

Wholesale electricity 
price path

In-house modelling of the wholesale electricity 
market cross-checked against publicly 
available price paths. The wholesale electricity 
price paths used to value generation assets 
range from $65 per MWh to $111 per MWh 
over the period from July 2016 to June 2026.

Plus/(minus) 10% $555 million 
to ($555 million)

Hydrological inflows 
affect generation volumes 
as well as wholesale 
electricity prices.

Generation volumes In-house modelling of the wholesale electricity 
market. The generation volumes used in the 
valuation ranged between 5,215 GWh and 
7,452 GWh per annum.

Plus/(minus) 10% $555 million 
to ($555 million)

Wholesale electricity 
prices affects the amount 
of generation.

Discount rate Pre-tax equivalent discount rate of 
10.8 per cent.

Plus/(minus) 1% $373 million 
to ($300 million)

Discount rate is 
independent of wholesale 
electricity prices and 
generation volumes.

Generation assets carried at historical cost
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

The table below presents the carrying value of generation assets as if they were recognised on the historical cost 
basis:
Cost 2,676.6 2,675.0

Accumulated depreciation and impairment (969.3) (1,035.0)

Carrying value at 30 June 1,707.3  1,640.0 

15. Property, plant and equipment (continued)



Impairment
Impairment in the 2015 financial year related to capital expenditure on Huntly units 1–4 and 6 and associated structures, and rehabilitation of 
the Huntly ash ponds associated with Huntly units 1–4. Refer to note 3 for disclosure of impairment by segment. Expenditure on Huntly units 
1–4 is no longer immediately impaired when incurred as the fair value of the units is positive at 30 June 2016. Expenditure associated with 
Huntly unit 6 continues to be immediately impaired when incurred as the fair value of this unit is nil. 
All other categories of property, plant and equipment
All other categories of property, plant and equipment, with the exception of land and capital work in progress, are recognised at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Land and capital work in progress are not depreciated.
Depreciation
For generation assets carried at fair value, their fair value, less any estimated residual value, is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis 
over their estimated remaining useful lives. Where a generation asset’s remaining useful life changes, the depreciation charge is adjusted 
prospectively. The estimated remaining useful lives of generation assets used in the depreciation calculation was up to 80 years.
For all other property, plant and equipment carried at cost, their cost, less any estimated residual value, is charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of different classes of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Estimated useful lives

Buildings and improvements 10 to 50 years

Other plant and equipment 3 to 15 years

The estimated useful lives of assets are reviewed annually. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if 
the carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset. The gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any balance attributable to the disposed asset in 
the asset revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

16. Oil and gas assets

Note

Exploration 
and evaluation 

expenditure 
$ million

Oil and gas 
producing 

assets  
$ million

Other oil 
and gas 

assets  
$ million

Capital work 
in progress  

$ million
Total 

$ million

Carrying value at 1 July 2014 1.5 324.5 14.6 1.5 342.1 

Additions 0.7 2.3  – 1.2 4.2 

Transfer to (from) capital work in progress  –  – 0.1 (0.1)  – 

Change in rehabilitation asset  – 1.4  –  – 1.4 

Depreciation and depletion expense 5  – (54.7) (0.6)  – (55.3)

Carrying value at 30 June 2015 2.2 273.5 14.1 2.6 292.4 

Additions 1.6 1.2  – 6.1 8.9 

Transfer to (from) capital work in progress  – 4.8 0.2 (5.0)  – 

Change in rehabilitation asset  – (3.1)  –  – (3.1)

Depreciation and depletion expense 5  – (29.9) (0.8)  – (30.7)

Carrying value at 30 June 2016 3.8 246.5 13.5 3.7 267.5 

Summary of cost and accumulated depreciation, 
depletion and impairment
Cost 20.7 553.7 18.5 2.6 595.5 

Accumulated depreciation, depletion and impairment (18.5) (280.2) (4.4)  – (303.1)

Carrying value at 30 June 2015 2.2 273.5 14.1 2.6 292.4 

Cost 22.3 556.6 18.7 3.7 601.3 

Accumulated depreciation, depletion and impairment (18.5) (310.1) (5.2)  – (333.8)

Carrying value at 30 June 2016 3.8 246.5 13.5 3.7 267.5 

15. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
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Exploration and evaluation expenditure
All exploration and evaluation costs, including directly attributable overheads, general permit activity and geological and geophysical costs are 
expensed as incurred except for the costs of drilling exploration wells and the costs of acquiring new interests. The costs of drilling exploration 
wells are initially capitalised pending the determination of the success of the well. Costs are expensed immediately where the well does not result 
in a successful discovery. Costs incurred before the Group has obtained the legal rights to explore an area are expensed as incurred. 
Exploration and evaluation expenditure assets are not amortised; instead, they are assessed annually for indicators of impairment. Any 
impairment is recognised in profit or loss. Once commercial approval has been obtained for the development of a project, the accumulated 
expenditure in relation to the project is transferred to oil and gas producing assets.
Oil and gas producing assets        
Oil and gas producing assets include costs associated with the production station transferred from development expenditure, mining licences 
and major inspection costs. Depletion of oil and gas producing assets excluding major inspection costs is calculated on a unit of production basis 
using the proven remaining reserves (1P) disclosed below. Major inspection costs are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 
period up to the next major inspection. Major inspections occur every two to three years depending on the nature of the work undertaken.
Proven reserves (1P) are the estimated quantities of oil and gas which geological and engineering data demonstrates with reasonable certainty 
to be recoverable in future years from known reservoirs, under existing economic and operating conditions. Proven reserves (1P) are defined as 
those which have a 90 per cent likelihood of being delivered. The proven oil and gas reserves used to deplete the oil and gas producing assets is 
reviewed annually. Because the geology of the Kupe oil and gas field subsurface cannot be examined directly, an indirect technique known as 
volumetrics has been used to estimate the size and recoverability of the reserve. Reserve estimates contain uncertainty and these are reviewed 
annually. There are high levels of uncertainty in terms of accessibility of reserves through sealing faults and pressure support. Proven reserve 
estimates have a 90 per cent likelihood of being delivered. A reduction of 10 per cent in these reserves would impact depletion charges going 
forward by up to $3.3 million per annum at current production rates.
During the 2015 financial year, the Joint Venture operator initiated a detailed review of Kupe’s field reserves. Gaffney Cline who has appropriate 
qualifications and experience in calculating reserves was engaged by the Group to calculate Kupe’s remaining reserves using the information 
provided by the Joint Venture operator. Total proven reserves (1P) of the Kupe oil and gas field increased by 136.2 petajoule equivalents (‘PJe’) as 
a result of the review. Unit of production depletion rates were adjusted for the change in reserves prospectively from 1 July 2015, in line with the 
Group’s accounting policy. This resulted in a $22.6 million decrease in depletion expense for the year. 
The table below presents the remaining Kupe oil and gas field reserves in PJe of which the Group has a 31 per cent interest.

Proven reserves (1P) Proven and probable reserves (2P)
2016 

PJe
2015 

PJe
2016 

PJe
2015 

PJe

Remaining field reserves at 1 July  188.2  227.4  302.4  341.6

Production (35.9) (39.2) (35.9) (39.2)

Change in reserve estimate 136.2  –   121.4  –   

Remaining field reserves at 30 June 288.5 188.2 387.9 302.4 

Developed  195.3  152.9  238.2  176.0 

Undeveloped  93.2  35.3  149.7  126.4 

Total remaining field reserves at 30 June 288.5 188.2 387.9 302.4 

Further investment will be required to access the undeveloped field reserves disclosed above.
The table below presents the remaining Kupe oil and gas field reserves by product type which the Group has a 31 per cent interest.

Proven reserves (1P) Proven and probable reserves (2P)
2016 2015 2016 2015

Gas in PJe 202.9 135.8 279.0 210.6

LPG in kilotonnes 840.0 581.9 1,154.0 902.1

Light oil in megabarrels 8.2 5.3 9.6 8.8

Other oil and gas assets
Other oil and gas assets include land, buildings, storage facilities, sales pipeline, motor vehicles and the ongoing costs of continuing to develop 
reserves for production. The cost of other oil and gas assets, less any estimated residual value, is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis 
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of other oil and gas assets are as follows:

Estimated useful lives

Buildings 50 years

Storage facilities 25 years

Sales pipeline 25 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

16. Oil and gas assets (continued)



17. Intangible assets

Note
Goodwill 
$ million

Computer 
software  
$ million

Emission 
units held 

for own use  
$ million

Naming 
rights  

$ million

Deferred 
customer 

acquisition costs 
$ million

Total 
$ million

Carrying value at 1 July 2014 102.6 19.6 6.7 3.2  – 132.1 

Additions  –  – 8.8 0.5  – 9.3 

Transfer from property, plant and equipment 15  – 9.4  –  –  – 9.4 

Disposed of or surrendered  – (0.5) (6.8)  –  – (7.3)

Amortisation expense 5  – (10.2)  – (1.6)  – (11.8)

Carrying value at 30 June 2015 102.6 18.3 8.7 2.1  – 131.7 

Additions  –  – 8.6 3.4 4.8 16.8 

Transfer from property, plant and equipment 15  – 9.5  –  –  – 9.5 

Disposed of or surrendered  – (0.5) (6.6) (0.1)  – (7.2)

Amortisation expense 5  – (9.9)  – (1.5)  – (11.4)

Amortisation expense included in other operating 
expenditure  –  –  –  – (0.9) (0.9)

Carrying value at 30 June 2016 102.6 17.4 10.7 3.9 3.9 138.5 

Summary of cost and accumulated amortisation and 
impairment
Cost 102.6 130.9 8.7 11.1  – 253.3 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment  – (112.6)  – (9.0)  – (121.6)

Carrying value at 30 June 2015 102.6 18.3 8.7 2.1  – 131.7 

Current  –  – 4.3  –  – 4.3 

Non-current 102.6 18.3 4.4 2.1  – 127.4 

Carrying value at 30 June 2015 102.6 18.3 8.7 2.1  – 131.7 

Cost 102.6 141.3 10.7 14.4 4.8 273.8 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment  – (123.9)  – (10.5) (0.9) (135.3)

Carrying value at 30 June 2016 102.6 17.4 10.7 3.9 3.9 138.5 

Current  –  – 4.8  –  – 4.8 

Non-current 102.6 17.4 5.9 3.9 3.9 133.7 

Carrying value at 30 June 2016 102.6 17.4 10.7 3.9 3.9 138.5 

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on the acquisition of subsidiaries is 
included in intangible assets. Goodwill on the acquisition of associates is included in the investment in associates. Goodwill is assessed as having 
an indefinite useful life and is not amortised but is subject to impairment testing annually or whenever there are indications of impairment.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the Customer Experience cash-generating unit (‘CGU’). 
The impairment test is based on an estimated discounted cash flow analysis (value in use). Estimated future cash flow projections are based 
on the Group’s three-year business plan for the Customer Experience business unit. Cash flows beyond the three-year business plan are 
extrapolated using a 1.0 percent year-on-year growth rate (2015: 1.0 per cent). The estimated future cash flow projections are discounted using 
a pre-tax equivalent discount rate of 10.8 per cent (2015: 11.0 per cent to 12.2 per cent). Any reasonably possible change in key assumptions 
on which the recoverable amount is based is not expected to cause the carrying value of the Customer Experience goodwill to exceed its 
recoverable amount. 
Key assumptions in the value-in-use calculation were:
Assumptions Method of determination

Customer numbers and customer churn Review of actual customer numbers and historical data regarding movements in customer numbers 
(the historical analysis is considered against expected market trends and competition for customers)

Gross margin Review of actual gross margins and consideration of expected market movements and impacts
Cost to serve Review of actual costs to serve and consideration of expected future costs
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Computer software
Items of computer software are assets with finite lives. These assets are recognised at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. 
Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset from the date it is available for use. The 
estimated useful life is between one and four years. 
Emission units held for own use
Emission units held for own use are initially recognised at fair value. Fair value is cost in the case of purchased units or the initial market value in 
the case of government-granted units. Emission units held for own use to settle the Group’s emission obligation are not revalued subsequent 
to initial recognition. They are assessed as having indefinite useful lives and are not amortised but are subject to annual impairment testing or 
whenever there are indicators of impairment.
Naming rights
Naming rights are assets with finite lives. These assets are recognised at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation 
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset from the date it is available for use. The useful life is 
based on the contract period which ranges between one and five years.
Deferred customer acquisition costs
Customer acquisition costs which are directly attributable to securing a particular customer contract, and meet the definition of an intangible 
asset, are capitalised and amortised over the average customer tenure (30 months). Amortisation of the customer acquisition costs is included 
within operating expenditure.

18. Investments in subsidiaries
Interest held

Name of entity Principal activity
Place of incorporation 
and operation

2016 
%

2015 
%

Genesis Power Investments Limited Holding company New Zealand 100 100

Kupe Holdings Limited Joint venture holding company New Zealand 100 100

GP No. 2 Limited Joint venture holding company New Zealand 100 100

GP No. 5 Limited Joint venture holding company New Zealand 100 100

Genesis Energy Insurance Pte Limited Captive insurance company Singapore 100 100

Genesis Energy Limited Executive Long-term 
Incentive Plan Trust

Trust New Zealand – –

All subsidiaries have 30 June balance dates.

19. Joint operations
The Group has a 31.0 per cent interest in the Kupe production facility and Petroleum Mining Permit 38146 held by the Kupe Joint Venture 
(2015: 31.0 per cent). The principal activity of the Kupe Joint Venture is petroleum production and sales. The Joint Venture is unincorporated 
and operates in New Zealand. The Group is considered to share joint control based on the contractual arrangements between the Group and 
other joint operators that state unanimous decision-making is required for relevant activities which most significantly impact the returns of the 
joint operation.
The Joint Venture is classified as a joint operation under NZ IFRS 11. The operating results of the Kupe Joint Venture are included in the Oil and 
Gas segment in note 3 and the Group’s share of capital expenditure commitments relating to joint operations is disclosed in note 27.

20. Related–party transactions
Majority shareholder and entities controlled by and related to the majority shareholder
The majority shareholder of the Parent is the Crown. The Parent and Group transact with Crown-controlled and related entities independently 
and on an arm’s-length basis for the purchase of coal and use of coal-handling facilities, emission activities including emission unit purchases and 
sales, royalties, scientific consultancy services, electricity transmission, postal services and energy-related products (including electricity derivatives).  
All transactions with Crown-controlled and related entities are based on commercial terms and conditions, and relevant market drivers.
The Group has two significant transactions with Meridian Energy, a Crown-controlled entity, being: a 150MW contract to provide dry-year cover 
for four years from 1 January 2015 and a 50MW contract to supply electricity to the Huntly node from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2018.
Dividends paid to the Crown during the year were $112.0 million (2015: $106.3 million). There were no other individually significant transactions 
with the Crown and Crown-controlled and related entities during the year (2015: nil).
Other transactions with Crown-controlled and related entities, which are collectively but not individually significant, relate to the purchase of 
coal, the sale of gas and electricity derivatives. All of the coal acquired by the Group during the year was supplied by Crown-controlled and 
related entities under coal supply agreements which were exited in October 2015 (2015: 100.0 per cent). Approximately 6.7 per cent (2015: 
13.7 per cent) of the gas sales were made to Crown-controlled and related entities under gas sales agreements which expired in December 
2015. Approximately 89.9 per cent of the value of electricity derivative assets and approximately 63.2 per cent of the value of electricity 
derivative liabilities held by the Group at year-end are held with Crown-controlled and related entities (2015: 79.5 per cent and 15.4 per cent, 
respectively). The contracts expire at various times; the latest expiry date is December 2025.

17. Intangible assets (continued)



Key management personnel compensation
The key management personnel of the Group consists of the Directors and the Executive Management team. Key management personnel 
compensation is as follows:

Note
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Short-term benefits 6.6 6.8

Post-employment benefits 0.2 0.2 

Termination benefits – 0.3

Share-based payments 12 – 0.1

Total key management personnel compensation 6.8 7.4

Other transactions with key management personnel or entities related to them
Key management personnel and their families may purchase gas and electricity from the Group on an arm’s-length basis and may purchase 
shares in the Company. Key management personnel also participate in the LTI plan discussed in note 12. The total number of shares held by 
key management personnel (excluding LTI shares) as at 30 June 2016 was 573,225 (2015: 784,188). During the year, dividends paid to key 
management personnel and their families was $102,101 (2015: $99,558). No other transactions took place between key management personnel 
and the Group (2015: nil). As at 30 June 2016, the balance payable to key management personnel was nil (2015: nil).

21. Payables and accruals
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Trade payables and accruals 159.3 150.2

Employee benefits 5.1 5.9

Emission obligations 3.2 2.9

Total 167.6 159.0

Current 166.8 158.3

Non-current 0.8 0.7

Total 167.6 159.0

Trade payables and accruals are recognised when the Group becomes obligated to make future payments resulting from the purchase of goods 
or services, and are subsequently carried at amortised cost.
A liability for employee benefits (wages and salaries, annual and long-service leave, and employee incentives) is recognised when it is probable 
that settlement will be required and the amount is capable of being measured reliably. Provisions made in respect of employee benefits are 
measured using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 
Emission obligations are recognised as a liability when the Group incurs the emission obligation. Emission units payable to third parties are 
recognised at the average cost of emission units on hand up to the amount of emission units on hand at the recognition date. Where the 
emission obligation exceeds the level of units on hand, the excess obligation over the units on hand is measured at the contract price where 
forward contracts exist or the market price for any obligation not covered by units on hand or forward contracts.

22. Borrowings
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Revolving credit and money market 50.1 101.0 

Wholesale term notes 319.7 320.1 

Retail term notes 100.2 107.1 

Capital bonds 202.6 202.6 

USPP 239.6 227.4 

Total 912.2 958.2 

Current 136.2 117.8 

Non-current 776.0 840.4 

Total 912.2 958.2 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 
Borrowings designated in a hedge relationship are carried at amortised cost adjusted for the change in the fair value of the hedged risk. Any 
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the 
borrowings using the effective interest method.

20. Related–party transactions (continued)
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Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months 
after the balance date.

2016 
$ million

2015 
$ million

Revolving credit and money market
Revolving credit drawn down 50.0 100.0 

Accrued interest 0.1 1.0 

Total revolving credit and money market 50.1 101.0 

Revolving credit
Expiring 2018 175.0 75.0 

Expiring 2019  – 75.0 

Expiring 2020 100.0 225.0 

Expiring 2021 150.0  – 

Expiring 2022  – 50.0 

Expiring 2023 75.0  – 

Total available revolving credit facility 500.0 425.0 

Revolving credit drawn down (excluding accrued interest) 50.0 100.0 

Total undrawn revolving credit facility 450.0 325.0 

Wholesale term notes
Expiring 2017 125.0 125.0 

Expiring 2020 120.0 120.0 

Expiring 2023 70.0 70.0 

Fair value interest rate risk adjustment 0.5 1.0 

Accrued interest 4.6 4.5 

Capitalised issue costs (0.4) (0.4)

Total wholesale term notes 319.7 320.1 

Retail term notes
Expiring 2016  – 105.0 

Expiring 2022 100.0  – 

Accrued interest 1.2 2.4 

Capitalised issue costs (1.0) (0.3)

Total retail term notes 100.2 107.1 

Capital bonds
Expiring 2042 200.0 200.0 

Accrued interest 2.6 2.6 

Total capital bonds 202.6 202.6 

The Group may redeem all or some of the capital bonds on a reset date or on any quarterly interest payment date after the first reset date, which 
is 16 July 2018. On the first reset date and every five years thereafter, the interest rate will reset to be the sum of the five-year swap rate on the 
relevant reset date plus a margin of 2.4 per cent. Redemptions on a reset date are at par; redemptions on a quarterly interest payment date must 
be at the greater of par or market value.

2016 
$ million

2015 
$ million

USPP  

Expiring 2026 70.1 73.8 

Expiring 2027 140.3 147.5 

Fair value interest rate risk adjustment 27.2 4.0 

Accrued interest 2.8 3.0 

Capitalised issue costs (0.8) (0.9)

Total USPP 239.6 227.4 

22. Borrowings (continued)



During the 2015 financial year, the Group entered into a firm commitment for the issue of $150.0 million United States dollar-denominated 
unsecured notes to United States-based institutional investors. A Note Purchase Agreement (‘NPA’) was signed on 25 November 2014. 
CCIRS have been used to manage foreign exchange and interest rate risks on the notes (refer to note 24 for further information on CCIRS).  
The USPP is measured at amortised cost adjusted for the change in fair value associated with the hedged risks in accordance with the Group’s 
accounting policy. While the New Zealand dollar amount required to repay the USPP in 2026 and 2027 is fixed as a result of the CCIRS, the 
USPP is required to be translated to New Zealand dollars at the spot rate at the reporting date, in accordance with NZ IFRS. Any increase/
decrease in the carrying value of the USPP as a result of this translation is offset by the movement in the fair value of the CCIRS disclosed in 
note 24.
Security        
All of the Group’s borrowings are unsecured. The Group borrows under a negative pledge arrangement, which does not permit the Group to 
grant any security interest over its assets, unless it is an exception permitted within the negative pledge.

23. Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group 
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as the 
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period taking into account 
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present 
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
Rehabilitation and restoration
The rehabilitation and restoration provision relates to the Meremere generation site, the Huntly ash ponds and the Kupe production facility. 
These sites require remediation as a result of past and present operations. Different methods and techniques can be used to remediate the sites. 
The provision represents the present value of the Group’s best estimate of future expenditure to be incurred based on the Group’s assessment 
of the most appropriate methods to remediate the sites at balance date. Key assumptions include: an estimate of when the rehabilitation and 
restoration is likely to take place, the possible remediation alternatives available, the expected expenditures attached to each alternative and the 
foreign currency exchange rate at balance date.
There is no financial provision for the remediation of the Huntly generation site because the Company has the right to lease the site in perpetuity. 
There is no fixed or planned termination date for the Huntly lease, and the site remains a key electricity generation site for the Company. The lease 
of the site is independent to decisions around the retirement of Huntly units 1–4 which are planned to be retired by 31 December 2022. There 
may be costs and recoveries associated with retiring Huntly units 1–4, but these cannot be reliably estimated at this time.
The key assumption that could have a material impact on the Meremere generation site rehabilitation estimate relates to the extent of 
rehabilitation required at the end of the lease. The extent of rehabilitation depends on the effectiveness of the historical rehabilitation work and 
the rehabilitation obligations under the lease. The current assumption is that the current remediation work with some further tidy-up at the end 
of the lease in 2017 will be sufficient. If future monitoring indicates that the clay caps need further remediation work, the provision would need to 
increase by up to $2.0 million. The site is monitored regularly and the rehabilitation plan amended as necessary. 
The key assumption that could have a material impact on the Huntly ash ponds rehabilitation estimate relates to the extent of rehabilitation work 
required. The current assumption is that all the ash would be removed from the ponds but, if some of the ash were capped in situ, the provision 
could decrease by $9.0 million. The rehabilitation work on the ash ponds is estimated to be completed within the next seven years.
The key assumptions that could have a material impact on the Kupe production facility rehabilitation estimate relates to foreign exchange 
rates, scrap-steel prices, labour rates, concrete removal costs, offshore supply vessel and jack-up rig rates, and associated mobilisation and 
demobilisation costs. The majority of costs are based in United States dollars and, therefore, are sensitive to fluctuations in foreign exchange 
rates. Given the equipment required to complete the rehabilitation comes from overseas, the mobilisation and demobilisation costs can fluctuate 
significantly depending on the volume of other work the contractor has at the time the rehabilitation is required to be completed. If the foreign 
exchange rate were to decrease by 10 per cent and if the transportation costs for the mobilisation and demobilisation were unable to be shared 
with other entities, the provision would increase by $18.1 million. Also affecting the provision are regulations around the removal of the subsea 
pipeline. Currently, there are no regulations around this and, as such, the provision assumes the subsea pipeline will be flushed and left in situ. 
The rehabilitation is estimated to be completed in approximately 13 years.
Contractual arrangements
The contractual arrangements provision relates to relationship and sponsorship agreements with various parties. The provision represents the 
present value of the best estimate of cash flows required to settle the Group’s obligations under the agreements. The timing of the outflows is 
expected to occur over the next 23 years.
Other provisions
Other provisions represent the onerous contract provision associated with changes to contractual arrangements and other minor provisions. 
The onerous contracts provision relates to onerous lease agreements associated with coal importation. The provision is based on the cash flows 
associated with the contracts. The timing of the outflows is expected to occur over the next four years.

22. Borrowings (continued)
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Note

Rehabilitation 
and restoration 

$ million

Contractual 
arrangements 

$ million

Other 
provisions 

$ million
Total 

$ million

Balance at 1 July 2014 69.6 54.4 16.5 140.5 

Provisions made during the year 5.4 0.7 3.9 10.0 

Provisions reversed during the year – (0.5) (10.0) (10.5)

Provisions used during the year (1.7) (4.2) (4.3) (10.2)

Time value of money adjustment 7 3.4 2.4 0.4 6.2 

Balance at 30 June 2015 76.7 52.8 6.5 136.0 

Provisions made during the year 0.8 5.7 2.0 8.5 

Provisions reversed during the year (3.2) (0.3) (0.1) (3.6)

Provisions used during the year (2.3) (4.4) (1.8) (8.5)

Time value of money adjustment 7 3.7 2.2 0.2 6.1 

Balance at 30 June 2016 75.7 56.0 6.8 138.5 

Current 2.4 8.5 1.4 12.3 

Non-current 74.3 44.3 5.1 123.7 

As at 30 June 2015 76.7 52.8 6.5 136.0 

Current 5.0 8.1 2.2 15.3 

Non-current 70.7 47.9 4.6 123.2 

As at 30 June 2016 75.7 56.0 6.8 138.5 

24. Derivatives
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and 
liquidity risk. The Group uses the following derivatives to hedge its financial risk exposures:
– Interest rate swaps
– Foreign exchange swaps and options
– Electricity swaps and options
– Oil swaps
– CCIRS
– Forward sale-and-purchase agreements of emission units held for trading
– LPG swaps.
The Group also enters into electricity derivatives with wholesale electricity market participants which allows them to hedge wholesale electricity 
market exposures.
During the 2015 financial year, the Group entered into CCIRS to swap the United States dollar principal and fixed coupon obligation for the 
USPP disclosed in note 22.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair 
value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and, if so, 
the nature of the item being hedged. 
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
– cash flow hedges where the Group hedges the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable either to a particular risk associated with 

a recognised asset or liability or to a highly probable forecast transaction; or
– fair value hedges where the Group hedges the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognised asset or liability. 
The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the relationship between the hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its 
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge 
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions have been and will continue to be highly 
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.
Forward sale-and-purchase agreements in relation to emission units held for trading do not meet the ‘own use’ exemption and, therefore, meet 
the definition of a derivative. These contracts are initially recognised at fair value on the date the contract is entered into and are subsequently 
remeasured to their fair value. Changes in the fair value are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

23. Provisions (continued)



Derivatives designated in a cash flow hedge relationship
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulate in the cash flow hedge reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss.
Amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period when the hedged item will affect the profit 
or loss. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for example, inventory) or 
liability, the gains and losses previously deferred in the cash flow hedge reserve are reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve and included in 
the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.
When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, 
the cumulative gain or loss at that time remains in the cash flow hedge reserve and is reclassified to profit or loss when the transaction occurs. 
If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve is reclassified 
immediately to profit or loss.
The margin and basis component of the CCIRS is designated as a cash flow hedge of the margin and basis component of the USPP notes. The 
interest rate risk associated with interest on New Zealand dollar borrowings is hedged using interest rate swaps. Foreign currency risk associated 
with future foreign currency cash flows is hedged using forward exchange derivatives. Electricity and oil derivatives are used to manage price risk 
associated with spot market exposures. 
Derivatives designated in a fair value hedge relationship
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in profit or loss, together with any 
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. 
The USPP and $25.0 million of the wholesale term notes are designated in fair value hedge relationships. CCIRS are used to swap the United 
States-dollar principal and fixed coupon obligations related to the notes to New Zealand dollar floating rate exposure. Interest rate swaps are 
used to convert the fixed coupons on wholesale term notes to floating rates.
Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Changes in the fair value of any derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Net carrying value of derivatives
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Derivatives designated in a cash flow hedge relationship
Foreign exchange swaps 3.3 (10.3)

Interest rate swaps (32.0) (16.7)

Electricity swaps (28.3) (2.7)

Oil swaps 3.9 10.6 

CCIRS 12.1 24.3 

Derivatives designated in a fair value hedge relationship
Interest rate swaps 0.5 1.0 

CCIRS 23.3 1.4 

Derivatives not designated as hedges
Interest rate swaps (4.6)  – 

Electricity swaps and options 10.4 28.1 

Forward sale-and-purchase agreements of emission units held for trading (Forward ‘S&P’ agreements)  – 0.2 

LPG swaps (0.1)  – 

Total (11.5) 35.9 

Carrying value of derivatives by balance sheet classification
Current assets 19.9 34.2 

Non-current assets 53.0 53.9 

Current liabilities (27.6) (21.5)

Non-current liabilities (56.8) (30.7)

Total (11.5) 35.9 

Derivatives that are settled within 12 months are treated as current.

24. Derivatives (continued)
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Change in carrying value of derivatives Note
Other* 

$ million
CCIRS 

$ million
Oil swaps 
$ million

Interest 
rate swaps 

$ million

Foreign 
exchange swaps 

and options 
$ million

Electricity  
swaps and  

options 
$ million

Total 
$ million

Balance as at 1 July 2014  –  – (4.4) (1.9) 4.7 (6.2) (7.8)

Total change recognised in electricity revenue  –  –  –  –  – 24.9 24.9 

– Net change in derivatives not designated 
 as hedges 0.2  –  –  – (1.6) 27.6 26.2 

– Net change in fair value hedges  – 1.4  – (0.4)  –  – 1.0 

– Ineffective gain (loss) on cash flow hedges  – (0.2) 5.1 (0.4) 0.1 1.5 6.1 

Total change recognised in the change in 
fair value of financial instruments 6 0.2 1.2 5.1 (0.8) (1.5) 29.1 33.3 

Gain (loss) recognised in other comprehensive 
income  – 24.5 19.2 (15.4) (15.9) 8.8 21.2 

Settlements  –  – (9.3) 2.4 2.2 (7.4) (12.1)

Sales (option fees)  –  –  –  –  – (23.8) (23.8)

Purchases (option fees)  –  –  –  – 0.2  – 0.2 

Balance as at 30 June 2015 0.2 25.7 10.6 (15.7) (10.3) 25.4 35.9 

Total change recognised in electricity revenue  –  –  –  –  – 23.3 23.3 

– Net change in derivatives not designated 
 as hedges (0.3)  –  – (0.1)  – (17.9) (18.3)

– Net change in fair value hedges  – 21.9  – (0.5)  –  – 21.4 

– Ineffective gain (loss) on cash flow hedges  – 0.1 (3.1) (4.1) (0.1) 0.2 (7.0)

Total change recognised in the change in 
fair value of financial instruments 6 (0.3) 22.0 (3.1) (4.7) (0.1) (17.7) (3.9)

Gain (loss) recognised in other comprehensive 
income  – (3.7) 18.0 (27.9) 6.9 (10.9) (17.6)

Settlements  – (8.6) (21.6) 12.2 6.8 (15.0) (26.2)

Sales (option fees)  –  –  –  –  – (23.0) (23.0)

Balance as at 30 June 2016 (0.1) 35.4 3.9 (36.1) 3.3 (17.9) (11.5)

*Other includes Forward ‘S&P’ agreements and LPG swaps

Reconciliation of movements in the cash flow 
hedge reserve

CCIRS 
$ million

Oil swaps 
$ million

Interest 
rate swaps 

$ million

Foreign 
exchange swaps 

$ million

Electricity  
swaps 

$ million
Total 

$ million

Balance as at 1 July 2014  – (2.0) (2.4) 2.0 (2.7) (5.1)

Total reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to profit or loss (30.6) (9.2) 2.4 3.4 (7.5) (41.5)

Total reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to the cost of 
assets  –  –  – 0.2  – 0.2 

Effective gain (loss) on cash flow hedges recognised directly in the 
cash flow hedge reserve 24.5 19.2 (15.4) (15.9) 8.8 21.2 

Total change in cash flow hedge reserve (6.1) 10.0 (13.0) (12.3) 1.3 (20.1)

Income tax on change in cash flow hedge reserve 1.7 (2.8) 3.6 3.5 (0.4) 5.6 

Balance as at 30 June 2015 (4.4) 5.2 (11.8) (6.8) (1.8) (19.6)

Total reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to profit or loss 2.4 (21.6) 12.3 5.9 (15.0) (16.0)

Effective gain (loss) on cash flow hedges recognised directly in the 
cash flow hedge reserve (3.7) 18.0 (27.9) 6.9 (10.9) (17.6)

Total change in cash flow hedge reserve (1.3) (3.6) (15.6) 12.8 (25.9) (33.6)

Income tax on change in cash flow hedge reserve 0.4 1.0 4.4 (3.6) 7.2 9.4 

Balance as at 30 June 2016 (5.3) 2.6 (23.0) 2.4 (20.5) (43.8)

The gain (loss) on interest rate swaps and CCIRS is recognised in finance expenses, the gain (loss) on foreign exchange swaps and options is 
recognised in other operating expenses and gas revenue, the gain (loss) on electricity swaps and options is recognised in electricity revenue in 
the profit or loss and the gain (loss) on oil swaps is recognised in petroleum revenue.

24. Derivatives (continued)



25. Financial instruments and financial risk management
Financial instruments
For financial reporting purposes, the Group designates its financial instruments into the following categories: 
Loans and receivables
– Cash and cash equivalents
– Receivables
Financial instruments in a hedge relationship
– Foreign exchange swaps
– Interest rate swaps
– Electricity swaps
– Oil swaps
– CCIRS
Financial instruments held for trading (derivatives not in a hedge relationship)
– Interest rate swaps
– Electricity swaps and options
– Forward sale-and-purchase agreements of emission units held for trading
– LPG swaps
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
– Payables
– Borrowings
Risk management
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise financial risk to the 
Group. The Board of Directors (the ‘Board’) has established policies which provide an overall risk management framework, as well as policies 
covering specific areas, such as electricity and oil price risk, foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivatives and the 
investment of excess liquidity. Interest rate, foreign exchange and oil price exposures are managed by the central Treasury function (‘Treasury’) 
and electricity exposures are managed by the portfolio management function, with oversight by the risk management function (‘Risk’). Treasury 
and Risk identify, evaluate and hedge financial risks in close cooperation with the Group’s operating units. Compliance with policies and exposure 
limits is monitored by Risk and independently reviewed by the Group’s internal auditor.
Price risk
The Group is exposed to movements in the spot price of electricity arising through the sale and purchase of electricity to and from the market. 
The Group is also exposed to movements in the spot price of light crude oil arising from sales of its share of oil from the Kupe production facility. 
The Group has limited exposure to changes in the sale price for gas and LPG as most of the volume is forward sold.
Electricity sales and purchases
The Group manages price risk in relation to electricity sales and purchases by entering into electricity swaps and options. Electricity swaps and 
options are either traded on the ASX or negotiated bilaterally with other energy companies and major customers. Electricity options are entered 
into as needs are identified and as counterparties seek to hedge their electricity purchase exposure. At balance date, the Group had electricity 
option contracts giving counterparties the right to exercise call options and electricity cap contracts.
The aggregate notional face value of the outstanding electricity swaps and options at balance date was $1,419.4 million (2015: $1,482.5 million).
Light crude oil sales
The Group manages price risk in respect of oil sales by entering into price swap contracts which provide a fixed price for future oil sales. The 
Group’s Treasury policy sets minimum and maximum control limits ranging from between 50 per cent and 90 per cent for the first 12 months to 
between 25 per cent and 75 per cent for months 13 to 24.
The aggregate notional value of the outstanding oil swaps at balance date was 29.0 million United States dollars (2015: 37.8 million United 
States dollars).
The value of electricity and oil swaps are sensitive to changes in forward prices, and oil swaps are also sensitive to movements in foreign exchange 
rates. The table below summarises the impact an increase/decrease in these forward pricing assumptions would have on the Group’s post-
tax profit or loss for the year and on the Group’s cash flow hedge reserve using year end exposures. The sensitivity analysis is based on the 
assumption that the relevant market prices (future electricity and oil price paths) had increased/decreased by 10 per cent with all other variables 
held constant. A positive number represents an increase in profit or the cash flow hedge reserve.
There have been no changes in the methods and assumptions used in the sensitivity calculations from the previous year.
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2016 
$ million

2015 
$ million

Electricity swaps and options
Post-tax impact on profit or loss

+10% (16.8) (5.8)

–10% 11.9 3.8 

Post-tax impact on cash flow hedge reserve (equity)
+10% (6.8) (4.9)

–10% 6.9 4.9 

Oil swaps
Post-tax impact on profit or loss

+10% (0.1) (0.5)

–10% 0.1 0.5 

Post-tax impact on cash flow hedge reserve (equity)
+10% (2.2) (2.7)

–10% 2.2 2.7 

Foreign currency risk 
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of capital and operational transactions and borrowings denominated in a currency other 
than the Group’s functional currency (including the purchase of capital equipment and maintenance and the sale of gas and petroleum). The 
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily the United States dollar and Japanese yen. 
The Group uses foreign exchange swaps and options to manage foreign exchange risk on capital and operational transactions. All significant 
capital project commitments and all capital purchase orders where exposure and currency levels are confirmed are hedged. All sales, operational 
commitments and purchase orders denominated in foreign currency over the equivalent of $500,000 New Zealand dollars are also hedged in 
accordance with the Group’s Treasury policy. For ongoing operating commitments, the equivalent of at least the next 12 months’ exposure must 
be hedged. For the currency exposure arising from the sale of oil and gas, the policy sets minimum and maximum control limits ranging between 
50 per cent and 90 per cent for the first 12 months to between 25 per cent and 75 per cent for months 13 to 24.
The Group uses CCIRS to manage foreign exchange risk on overseas borrowings. All interest and principal repayments are hedged. The 
combination of the foreign-denominated debt and the CCIRS results in a net exposure to New Zealand floating interest rates and a fixed New 
Zealand-denominated principal repayment. The New Zealand floating interest rate risk is managed using the process described in the interest 
rate risk section below.
The following table details the foreign exchange swaps and options outstanding at balance date. A positive number represents a buy contract and 
a negative number represents a sell contract.

Foreign amount Face value Fair value

Currency of contract
2016 

million
2015 

million
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Foreign exchange swaps
United States dollar (38.3) (60.0) (57.2) (80.1) 2.7 (9.9)

Japanese yen 895.1 1,183.5 11.7 15.3 0.6 (0.4)

CCIRS
United States dollar 150.0 150.0 193.2 193.2 35.4 25.7 

Total foreign exchange swaps and options 147.7 128.4 38.7 15.4 

The values of foreign exchange swaps and options and CCIRS are sensitive to changes in the forward prices of currencies. Foreign currency 
borrowings are fully hedged against movements in foreign currencies. Any movements in the value of borrowings, or in the interest payable due 
to a movement in the exchange rate, are offset by any equal and opposite movements in the value and cash flows applicable to the hedge.
The table below summarises the impact an increase/decrease in foreign exchange rates would have on the Group’s post-tax profit or loss for the 
year and on the Group’s cash flow hedge reserve based on year end exposures. The sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that the New 
Zealand dollar had weakened/strengthened by 10 per cent against the currencies with which the Group has foreign currency risk, with all other 
variables held constant. A positive number represents an increase in profit or the cash flow hedge reserve.
There have been no changes in the methods and assumptions used in the sensitivity calculations from the previous year.

25. Financial instruments and financial risk management (continued)



Currency of contract % change in rate
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

 Post–tax impact on cash flow hedge reserve (equity) 
 United States dollar  +10% 3.5 5.8 

 –10% (4.3) (7.1)

 Japanese yen  +10% (0.8) (0.9)

 –10% 1.0 1.1 

 Total foreign exchange swaps and options  +10% 2.7 4.9 

 Total foreign exchange swaps and options  –10% (3.3) (6.0)

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because the Parent borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The Group uses interest 
rate swaps to manage interest rate risk. The Group’s policy sets maximum and minimum control limits for fixed interest rate exposure which 
range from between 50 per cent and 100 per cent of projected debt with an age profile of less than one year to a maximum of 50 per cent for 
projected debt with an age profile of greater than five years and a maximum of 20 per cent for projected debt with an age profile of greater than 
10 years. The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities is disclosed in the liquidity risk section of this note.
The following table details the notional principal amounts and the remaining terms of interest rate swaps outstanding at balance date:

Average contracted 
fixed interest rates

Notional principal 
amount Fair value

2016 
%

2015 
%

2016 
$ million

2015 
$ million

2016 
$ million

2015 
$ million

Not later than one year 5.08 3.67 100.0 50.0 0.2 (1.2)

Later than one year and not later than two years – 5.08 – 100.0 – (2.9)

Later than two years and not later than five years 5.14 5.23 110.0 90.0 (10.0) (3.7)

Later than five years 4.89 5.06 220.0 265.0 (26.2) (7.9)

5.00 4.96 430.0 505.0 (36.0) (15.7)

The values of interest rate swaps are sensitive to changes in forward interest rates. The table below summarises the impact an increase/decrease 
in interest rates would have on the Group’s post-tax profit or loss for the year and on the Group’s cash flow hedge reserve. The sensitivity 
analysis is based on the assumption that interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held constant based on year 
end exposures. A positive number represents an increase in profit or the cash flow hedge reserve.
There have been no changes in the methods and assumptions used in the sensitivity calculations from the previous year.

2016 
$ million

2015 
$ million

Post-tax impact on profit
+1% 0.5 (0.6)

–1% (0.5) 0.8 

Post-tax impact on cash flow hedge reserve (equity)
+1% 10.5 11.1 

–1% (11.3) (12.1)

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations, resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group is 
exposed to credit risk in the normal course of business arising from trade receivables and with banks and financial institutions where short-term 
deposits are held. The Group is also exposed to credit risk arising from derivative counterparties defaulting on their contractual obligations.
The Group is a producer and retailer of electricity and gas. In terms of wholesale sales to the national grid, credit risk is significantly reduced as 
the Group purchases from the grid for its retail customer base with credit risk being limited to the net position on settlement. In addition, market 
security requirements in place ensure that there is no significant credit risk for any one participant. Market participants are required to provide 
letters of credit to the market clearing agent (NZX Limited), which would be called upon should any market participant default.
Credit risk exposure arising from the supply of electricity and gas to the retail market is mitigated due to the Group’s large customer base and, in 
respect of its larger customers, the diverse range of industries they represent throughout New Zealand. The Group has adopted a policy of only 
dealing with creditworthy trade counterparties and obtaining collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from 
defaults. The Group also minimises its exposure to credit risk in this area through the adoption of counterparty credit limits, and active credit-
management practices such as monitoring the size and nature of exposures and mitigating the risk deemed to be above acceptable levels.

25. Financial instruments and financial risk management (continued)
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A bond is held as collateral from any post-paid electricity customer whose credit profile does not meet the standard set by the Group. The bond 
is managed in accordance with the terms and conditions outlined in the supply agreement with individual customers. The bond is returned to the 
customer at cessation of supply. The value of collateral held at balance date was $1.0 million (2015: $3.6 million). The carrying value of the bond 
is considered to approximate its fair value.
Derivative counterparties and cash transactions are limited to high-credit-quality financial institutions and other organisations. The Group’s 
exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored, and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread 
amongst approved counterparties. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with any one financial institution.
The carrying amounts of financial assets recognised in the balance sheet best represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the 
reporting date.
Liquidity risk
The Group’s liquidity risk arises from its ability to attract cost-effective funding; this is largely driven by its credit standing (Standard & Poor’s = 
BBB+). Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through an 
adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the spreading of debt maturities.
Liquidity risk is monitored by continuously forecasting cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
The table below details the Group’s liquidity analysis for its financial liabilities and derivatives. The table has been drawn up based on the 
undiscounted cash inflows (outflows) for all financial liabilities and derivatives. The amounts in the table are the undiscounted contractual cash 
flows. Where the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the internally generated 
forward price curves existing at balance date. As the amounts included in the tables are contractual undiscounted cash flows, these amounts will 
not reconcile to the amounts disclosed in the balance sheet. 

As at 30 June 2016

Weighted average 
effective interest rate 

%

Less than 
1 year 

$ million
1 to 2 years 

$ million
2 to 5 years 

$ million

More than 
5 years 

$ million

Total contractual 
cash flows 

$ million

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables  Non-bearing (164.4)  –  –  – (164.4)
Revolving credit and money market  5.2 (2.6) (2.6) (57.1)  – (62.3)
Wholesale term notes  6.7 (143.1) (12.5) (147.7) (78.1) (381.4)
Retail term notes  4.3 (4.1) (4.1) (12.4) (104.1) (124.7)
Capital bonds  6.2 (12.4) (12.4) (37.1) (450.7) (512.6)
USPP 4.2 (7.7) (7.7) (23.2) (253.3) (291.9)

(334.3) (39.3) (277.5) (886.2) (1,537.3)
Derivative assets (liabilities)
Net-settled derivatives
Interest rate swaps (cash flow hedges) (3.7) (4.5) (18.3) (9.4) (35.9)
Interest rate swaps (not designated as 
hedges) (1.4) (1.2) (2.4) (0.1) (5.1)

Interest rate swaps (fair value hedges) 1.1  –  –  – 1.1 
Electricity swaps (cash flow hedges) (17.4) (7.9) (4.8) 0.8 (29.3)
Electricity swaps and options (not designated 
as hedges) 10.0 9.4 6.3 (6.9) 18.8 

Oil swaps (cash flow hedges) 2.4 1.6 (0.2)  – 3.8
LPG swaps (0.1)  –  –  – (0.1)
Gross–settled derivatives
Foreign exchange swaps (cash flow hedges)
– Inflows 2.7 1.7 0.6  – 5.0 
– Outflows (0.9) (0.1)  –  – (1.0)
CCIRS
– Inflows 7.7 7.7 23.2 253.3 291.9 

– Outflows (7.7) (7.5) (23.6) (242.3) (281.1)

(7.3) (0.8) (19.2) (4.6) (31.9)

The foreign exchange swaps cash flows above include $0.2 million inflow in the less-than-one-year category in relation to capital projects which 
would not be recognised in profit or loss.

25. Financial instruments and financial risk management (continued)



As at 30 June 2015

Weighted average 
effective interest rate 

%

Less than 
1 year 

$ million
1 to 2 years 

$ million
2 to 5 years 

$ million

More than 
5 years 

$ million

Total contractual 
cash flows 

$ million

Non–derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables  Non-bearing (156.1)  –  –  – (156.1)
Revolving credit and money market 5.6 (5.7) (5.6) (105.8)  – (117.1)
Wholesale term notes 6.8 (21.4) (143.3) (156.1) (82.2) (403.0)
Retail term notes 8.0 (113.0)  –  –  – (113.0)
Capital bonds 6.2 (12.4) (12.4) (37.1) (463.1) (525.0)
USPP 5.4 (8.1) (8.1) (24.4) (274.7) (315.3)

(316.7) (169.4) (323.4) (820.0) (1,629.5)
Derivative assets (liabilities)
Net–settled derivatives
Interest rate swaps (cash flow hedges) (1.5) (4.1) (11.2) (2.1) (18.9)
Interest rate swaps (fair value hedges) 0.6 1.0  –  – 1.6 
Electricity swaps (cash flow hedges) 2.5 (2.2) (2.3) (1.2) (3.2)
Electricity swaps and options (not designated 
as hedges) 11.5 7.5 11.6  – 30.6 

Oil swaps (cash flow hedges) 10.1 0.3  –  – 10.4 
Forward sale-and-purchase agreements of 
emission units held for trading 0.2  –  –  – 0.2 

Gross–settled derivatives
Foreign exchange swaps (cash flow hedges)
– Inflows 0.1  –  –  – 0.1 
– Outflows (7.3) (2.1) (0.1)  – (9.5)
CCIRS
– Inflows 8.1 8.1 24.4 274.6 315.2 

– Outflows (9.5) (9.2) (30.8) (269.3) (318.8)

14.8 (0.7) (8.4) 2.0 7.7 

The foreign exchange swaps cash flows above include no inflow in the less-than-one-year category in relation to capital projects which would 
not be recognised in profit or loss.
Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital in a prudent manner to ensure that each entity in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while 
maximising the return to shareholders through the appropriate balance of debt and equity. This is achieved by ensuring that the level and timing 
of its capital investment programmes, equity raisings and dividend distributions are consistent with the Group’s capital structure strategy. This 
strategy remains unchanged from previous years. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed 
in note 22, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to the shareholders of the Parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained 
earnings as disclosed in the balance sheet.
Under the Group’s debt funding facilities, the Group has given undertakings that the ratio of debt to equity will not exceed a prescribed level 
and the interest cover will not be below a prescribed level. For the purpose of these undertakings, the capital bonds and related interest costs 
are treated as 50 per cent equity. The covenants are monitored on a regular basis to ensure they are complied with. There were no breaches in 
covenants during the year (2015: nil).

26. Fair value
Fair value hierarchy 
The Group’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value are categorised into one of three levels as follows:
Level one – the fair value is determined using unadjusted quoted prices from an active market for identical assets and liabilities. A market is 
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, a dealer, a broker, an industry group, a pricing service or a 
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s-length basis.  
Level two – the fair value is derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within level one that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). Financial instruments in this level include interest rate swaps, foreign 
exchange swaps, oil swaps and electricity derivatives which are valued using observable electricity price paths.
Level three – the fair value is derived from inputs that are not based on observable market data. Financial instruments included in this level 
include electricity derivatives which are valued using internally generated electricity price paths. 
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the date of the event or change in 
circumstances that caused the transfer. There were no transfers between levels one, two and three during the year (2015: nil).

25. Financial instruments and financial risk management (continued)
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Level two items carried at fair value

Recurring fair value measurements
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Level two
Derivatives
Interest rate swaps (36.1) (15.7)

Foreign exchange swaps 3.3 (10.3)

Oil swaps 3.9 10.6 

Electricity swaps (cash flow hedges) (0.1)  – 

Electricity swaps and options (not designated as hedges) (1.8) (2.3)

CCIRS 35.4 25.7 

Forward sale-and-purchase agreements of emission units held for trading  – 0.2 

LPG swaps (0.1)  – 

4.5 8.2 

Inventory
Emission units held for trading 4.9 2.3 

Valuation of level two items carried at fair value
The fair values of level two derivatives and emission units held for trading carried at fair value are determined using discounted cash flow models. The 
key inputs in the valuation models were:
Item Valuation input

Interest rate swaps Forward interest rate price curve
Foreign exchange swaps Forward foreign exchange rate curves
Oil swaps Forward oil price and foreign exchange rate curves
Electricity swaps and options ASX forward price curve
CCIRS Forward interest rate price curve and foreign exchange rate curves
Forward sale-and-purchase agreements of emission units held for trading OM Financial forward curve
Emission units held for trading OM Financial forward curve
LPG swaps Forward propane price and foreign exchange rate curves

Level three items carried at fair value

Recurring fair value measurement Note
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Level three
Derivatives
Electricity swaps (cash flow hedges) (28.2) (2.7)

Electricity swaps and options (not designated as hedges) 12.2 30.4 

(16.0) 27.7 

Property, plant and equipment
Generation assets 15 2,923.5 2,628.0 

Valuation of level three items carried at fair value
Valuation processes of the Group
The Group’s finance department includes a team who perform the valuations of level three fair values for generation assets and derivatives. This 
team reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer. Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the Chief Financial Officer 
and the valuation team at least six monthly for generation assets, and monthly for derivatives. As part of these discussions, the team presents 
analysis to explain the reasons for changes in fair value measurements. The Chief Financial Officer reports key changes to inputs to the Board in 
the monthly finance report and any changes to the valuation methodology are reported to the Audit and Risk Committee through update papers 
when any changes are anticipated or have been made due to changes in the business.

26. Fair value (continued)



Valuation of electricity swaps and options        
The valuation of electricity swaps and options in level three is based on a discounted cash flow model over the life of the agreement.  The key 
assumptions in the model are: the callable volumes, strike price and option fees outlined in the agreement, the internally generated forecasted 
electricity price path (‘price path’), ‘day one’ gains and losses, emission credits and the discount rate.  The options are deemed to be called when 
the internally generated price path is higher than the strike prices after taking into account obligations relating to the specific terms of each 
contract.  No calling is required for the swaps and there are no option fees.  
The selection of variables used within the price path requires significant judgement and, therefore, there is a range of reasonable assumptions 
that could be used in estimating the price path. The key unobservable inputs driving potential changes to the price path are changes in electricity 
demand, hydrology and new generation build. A material change in any one of these factors could result in a material change to the price 
path and, therefore, the fair value of electricity swaps and options within level three. These factors are reviewed for reasonableness by senior 
management personnel who are responsible for the price path used by the business.  The price path assumes national demand growth based on 
the latest available industry information and Genesis Energy’s view of growth within various sectors of the economy. Forecast hydrology is based 
on 83 years of historical hydrological inflow data and new generation build assumptions are based on public announcements made by market 
participants and an assessment on the wholesale electricity prices required to support new generation build. The price path also assumes the on-
going operation of New Zealand Aluminium Smelters Limited at Tiwai Point.
The key unobservable inputs, range of assumptions and third-party inputs combine to determine the wholesale electricity price path. The 
wholesale electricity price paths used to value level three electricity swaps and options ranged from $65 per MWh to $109 per MWh over the 
period from July 2016 to 31 December 2025 (2015: $69 per MWh to $115 per MWh over the period from July 2015 to 31 December 2025). 
The discount rate used in the model ranged from 1.6 per cent to 8.3 per cent (2015: 2.9 per cent to 8.9 per cent) and the emission credit price 
used ranged between $18.00 and $25.00 (2015: $7.50 and $25.00).
If the price path increased by 10 per cent while holding the discount rate consistent, this would result in the carrying value of the electricity 
derivatives decreasing to $50.7 million liability (2015: $12.1 million asset).  If the price path decreased by 10 per cent while holding the discount 
rate constant, the carrying value would increase to $12.7 million asset (2015: $40.7 million asset). 
Reconciliation of level three electricity swaps and options

2016 
$ million

2015 
$ million

Balance as at 1 July 27.7 (6.7)

Total gain (loss)
– Electricity revenue 23.3 24.9 

– Change in fair value of financial instruments (18.0) 32.0 

Total gain (loss) in profit or loss 5.3 56.9 

Total gain (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income (16.7) 4.6 

Settlements (gain) loss (8.9) (3.1)

Sales (23.4) (24.0)

Balance as at 30 June (16.0) 27.7 

The change in fair value of financial instruments disclosed above includes an unrealised loss of $18.1 million (2015: $31.5 million gain) on level 
three derivatives held at balance date.
Valuation of generation assets
Refer to note 15 for the valuation and reconciliation of movements in generation assets.
Deferred ‘day one’ gains (losses)
There is a presumption that when derivative contracts are entered into on an arm’s length basis, and no payment is received or paid on day one, 
the fair value at inception would be nil. The contract price of non-exchange traded electricity derivative contracts are agreed on a bilateral basis, 
the pricing for which may differ from the prevailing derived market price for a variety of reasons. In these circumstances, an adjustment is made 
to bring the initial fair value of the contract to zero at inception. The adjustment is called a ‘day one’ gain (loss) and is deferred and amortised, 
based on expected call volumes over the term of the contract. The ‘day one’ adjustment below is included in the level three electricity swaps and 
options carrying value at balance date.
The following table details the movements and amounts of deferred ‘day one’ gains (losses) included in the fair value of level three electricity 
swaps and options held at balance date:

2016 
$ million

2015 
$ million

Balance as at 1 July 17.1 12.9 

Deferred 'day one' gains (losses) on new derivatives 63.6 15.0 

Deferred 'day one' gains (losses) realised during the year (8.0) (10.8)

Balance as at 30 June 72.7 17.1 

26. Fair value (continued)
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Items disclosed at fair value
Carrying value Fair value
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million
2016 

$ million
2015 

$ million

Level one
Retail term notes (100.2) (107.1) (103.2) (110.2)

Capital bonds (202.6) (202.6) (206.2) (204.9)

Level two
Wholesale term notes (319.7) (320.1) (344.3) (341.1)

USPP (239.6) (227.4) (235.0) (224.4)

The carrying value of all other financial assets and liabilities in the balance sheet approximates their fair values.
Valuation of wholesale term notes
The valuation of wholesale term notes is based on estimated discounted cash flow analyses using applicable market yield curves adjusted for the 
Group’s credit rating. Market yield curves at balance date used in the valuation ranged from 3.0 per cent to 3.9 per cent (2015: 3.7 per cent to 
5.1 per cent).
Valuation of USPP
The valuation of USPP is based on estimated discounted cash flow analyses using applicable United States market yield curves adjusted for the 
Group’s credit rating. The credit-adjusted market yield curve at balance date used in the valuation was 2.5 per cent (2015: 3.6 per cent).

27. Commitments
Capital commitments

2016 
$ million

2015 
$ million

Not later than one year 1.3 1.2

Later than one year but not later than five years – 4.3

Total capital commitments 1.3 5.5

The capital commitments disclosed above include no amounts relating to Kupe Joint Venture (2015: $1.1 million).
Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the 
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. When assets are leased under a finance lease, the present value of the minimum lease 
payments is recognised as either a payable or a receivable in the balance sheet. Repayments are allocated between the capital and interest over 
the term of the lease in order to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease. Payments 
made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term. Receipts from operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Operating lease commitments
Where the Group is lessee
The Group leases building accommodation for its offices and land for its generation sites under operating lease arrangements. The Group also 
leases vehicles and certain office equipment. These leases are of a rental nature and are on normal commercial terms and conditions. These 
leases have varying lease periods of up to 20 years. In some cases, renewal rights exist with market review clauses. The Group does not have any 
options to purchase the leased assets at the expiry of the lease period. 

2016 
$ million

2015 
$ million

Not later than one year 8.4 8.4

Later than one year but not later than five years 23.9 17.0

Later than five years 31.9 13.6

Total operating lease commitments 64.2 39.0

Lease commitments are disclosed exclusive of GST.

26. Fair value (continued)



28. Contingent assets and liabilities
The Group had contingent assets and liabilities at 30 June 2016 in respect of:
Land claims, law suits and other claims
The Parent acquired interests in land and leases from Electricity Corporation of New Zealand Limited (‘ECNZ’) on 1 April 1999. These interests 
in land and leases may be subject to claims to the Waitangi Tribunal and may be resumed by the Crown. The Parent would expect to negotiate 
with the new Maori owners for occupancy and usage rights of any sites resumed by the Crown. Certain claims have been brought to or are 
pending against the Parent, ECNZ and the Crown under the Treaty of Waitangi Act 1975. Some of these claims may affect land and leases 
purchased by the Parent or its subsidiaries from ECNZ. In the event that land is resumed by the Crown, the resumption would be affected by 
the Crown under the Public Works Act 1981 and compensation would be payable to the Parent. 
The Board of Directors cannot reasonably estimate the adverse effect (if any) on the Parent if any of the foregoing claims are ultimately resolved 
against it, or any contingent or currently unknown costs or liabilities crystallise. There can be no assurances that these claims will not have a 
material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition or results of operations.
There are no other known material contingent assets or liabilities (2015: Inland Revenue Department draft Provisional Depreciation 
Determination for Geothermal and Thermal Powerhouses).

29. Events occurring after balance date
Subsequent to balance date, the Parent declared a final dividend of $82.0 million (8.2 cents per share).
There have been no other significant events subsequent to balance date.
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16 Independent Auditor’s Report
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GENESIS ENERGY LIMITED  
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Auditor General
The Auditor-General is the auditor of Genesis Energy Limited and its subsidiaries. The Auditor-General has appointed me, Andrew Dick, using 
the staff and resources of Deloitte, to carry out the audit of the financial statements of the Group, consisting of Genesis Energy Limited and its 
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as ‘the Group’), on her behalf.
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Group, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2016, and 
the consolidated comprehensive income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes 
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements, on pages 2 to 36, present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated 
financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2016, and its consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the International Standards on 
Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Statement on Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) 
Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners (AG PES 1 (Revised)) which incorporates Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of 
Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
In addition to the audit we have carried out assignments in the areas of trustee reporting, scrutineer’s notice, review of the interim report and 
other assurance and non-assurance services which are compatible with those independence requirements. These services have not impaired our 
independence as auditor of the Group. 
In addition to these assignments, principals and employees of our firm deal with the Group on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading 
activities of the Group.  Other than the audit and these assignments and trading activities, we have no relationship with, or interests in the Group.
Audit Materiality
We consider materiality primarily in terms of the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements of the Group that in our judgement 
would make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced (the “quantitative” 
materiality). In addition, we also assess whether other matters that come to our attention during the audit would in our judgement change or 
influence the decisions of such a person (the “qualitative” materiality). We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work. 
Based on our professional judgement, we determined the quantitative materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole to be $10 million. 
This was determined with reference to a number of factors. $10 million represents 4.0 per cent of profit before tax, 0.5 per cent of total equity 
and 0.5 per cent of revenue.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the 
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

KEY AUDIT MATTER HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Valuation of Generation Assets 
Generation assets were revalued at 30 June 2016 as set out in note 15 of 
the consolidated financial statements to $2,923.5 million.
The fair value of generation assets is estimated using an internally generated 
discounted cash flow model which is prepared by management and 
independently reviewed by an external party. The significant inputs used to 
calculate the fair value of the generation assets are the wholesale electricity 
price path, generation volumes, and the discount rate. The wholesale 
electricity price path is estimated by Genesis Energy as described in note 15 
of the consolidated financial statements.
The model used to estimate the wholesale electricity price path is complex 
and includes a number of significant assumptions. The estimate of the 
wholesale electricity price path is the most significant input in estimating the 
fair values determined for the generation assets and affects the estimated 
generation volumes which are also used in the fair value calculation. 

 
Our audit procedures included assessing the key inputs to the model 
used to estimate the fair value of the generation assets. Our procedures 
which included the use of our internal valuation experts were primarily 
focused on evaluating the process undertaken by Genesis Energy in 
forecasting the wholesale electricity price path and assessing whether 
the forecast was consistent with internal and external data.
We assessed the professional competence of the Genesis Energy 
valuers involved in the modelling of the electricity price path and 
valuation of the generation assets.
We also compared budgeted performance information from prior periods 
to historical data to assess the accuracy of the forecasting process.
We have assessed the competence, independence and objectivity of 
the external party undertaking the review.



KEY AUDIT MATTER HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Valuation of Generation Assets (continued)
Changes to the forecast of the wholesale electricity price path could 
significantly change the estimated fair value of the generation assets.
The treatment of the gains on revaluation estimated by Genesis Energy 
for specific assets are described in note 15 of the consolidated financial 
statements.
We included the valuation of generation assets as a key audit matter due 
to the level of judgement required in forecasting the wholesale electricity 
price path.

 
We have compared the forecast wholesale electricity price path with 
externally derived data. We also evaluated the assumptions used in 
forecasting the electricity price path to determine whether they 
were consistent with assumptions used across the business, including 
management budgets and valuations of other assets including 
certain electricity derivatives.
We performed sensitivity analysis on the key assumptions applied in 
determining the fair value of the generation assets and considered the 
adequacy of the Group’s disclosures.
We have found the assumptions and resulting valuation to be reasonable.

Valuation of Electricity Derivatives and Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps 
The Group’s activities expose it to electricity and gas market price, oil 
price, currency and interest rate risk which are managed using derivative 
financial instruments. At 30 June 2016 derivative assets totalled $72.9 
million and derivative liabilities were $84.4 million as set out in note 24 of 
the consolidated financial statements.
The valuations of the oil swaps, interest rate swaps, foreign exchange 
swaps and options, and some electricity derivatives which are prepared by 
Genesis Energy valuers are based primarily on observable inputs and are 
measured using standard valuation techniques. 
Cross-currency interest rate swaps and certain electricity swaps and 
options are also valued using primarily observable inputs but require 
more complex valuation models. Additionally, some electricity swaps and 
options are valued using the wholesale electricity price path forecast by 
Genesis Energy valuers. As explained in the ‘Valuation of Generation 
Assets’ section above, the wholesale electricity price path forecast 
requires significant judgement.
We have included the valuation of electricity derivatives and cross 
currency interest rate swaps as a key audit matter due to the complexity 
associated with their valuation and the judgement involved in evaluating 
the inputs to the electricity derivative valuation models.

 
We tested the design and operating effectiveness of key controls related 
to the recording and valuation of electricity derivative transactions. 
We challenged key assumptions applied by management and agreed 
underlying data to the contract terms on a sample basis. We have 
independently recalculated the fair value of a sample of electricity 
derivatives.
Our internal valuation experts have evaluated the appropriateness of the 
methodology applied in valuation models for the electricity derivatives.
We also performed audit work on the wholesale electricity price 
path as explained above under the section entitled ‘Valuation of 
Generation Assets’.
Our internal valuation experts have independently recalculated the 
value of a sample of cross-currency interest rate swaps using specialist 
treasury management software.
We have found the assumptions and resulting valuations to be reasonable.

Kupe Reserves Estimate 
The Group has a 31 per cent interest in the Kupe Joint Venture. At 30 
June 2016 oil and gas assets held by the Group totalled $267.5 million as 
set out in note 16 of the consolidated financial statements.
The estimation of the oil and gas reserves has a pervasive impact on the 
financial statements through depletion as the oil and gas is extracted and 
on impairment considerations.
The rate of depletion of oil and gas assets is based on the quantity of oil 
and gas extracted during the period compared to the proven reserves 
to which the assets relate. Proven reserves are the estimated quantities 
of oil and gas which geological and engineering data demonstrate with 
reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from known 
reservoirs, under existing economic and operating conditions.
Estimating the proven reserves that are used to consider impairment and 
to calculate depletion requires significant expertise and judgement as oil 
and gas reserves cannot be directly examined.
Proven reserves are estimated based on an indirect technique 
and estimates can change over time as explained in note 16 of the 
consolidated financial statements.
Proven reserves were reviewed during the year ended 30 June 2016. 
This was performed by Genesis Energy’s external specialist based on 
information provided by the Kupe Joint Venture Operator. The method is 
detailed in note 16 of the consolidated financial statements. 
We have included the estimate of Kupe reserves as a key audit matter due 
to the judgement in estimating the quantities of oil and gas in the reservoirs 
and the impact that these estimates have on the depletion expense, the 
carrying value of the oil and gas assets and on impairment considerations.

 
We evaluated the process undertaken by Genesis Energy’s external 
specialist based on information provided by the Kupe Joint Venture 
Operator to estimate the proven reserves and the process undertaken 
by Genesis Energy to assess indicators of impairment and to calculate 
the annual depletion of oil and gas assets.
We have evaluated the professional competence of the external 
specialist who performed the assessment and reviewed the 
assumptions that the specialist used in estimating the proven reserves 
to ensure they were consistent with our understanding.
We have considered the final oil and gas reserves estimation report 
prepared by Genesis Energy’s external specialist in light of our 
understanding of the business.
We obtained confirmation of the quantities of oil and gas extracted 
during the period from the component auditor of the Kupe Joint 
Venture and reviewed Genesis Energy’s calculation of the depletion 
rate for the oil and gas assets.
We consider that the reserve estimate is reasonable for use in the 
calculation of depletion expense and for performing impairment 
testing on the oil and gas assets.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in the Annual Report that 
accompanies the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us 
after the date of this auditor’s report.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it 
becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the other information, if we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the directors.
Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible on behalf of the entity for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with NZ IFRS and IFRS, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
The Directors are also responsible for the publication of the consolidated financial statements, whether in printed or electronic form.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our responsibility arises from section 15 
of the Public Audit Act 2001. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
 > Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 > Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

 > Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management.

 > Conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by the Directors and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

 > Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 > Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to 
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group 
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

 > We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the financial statements. Also, we did not evaluate the 
security and controls over the electronic publication of the financial statements.

 > We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

 > We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards.

 > From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Andrew Dick.

On behalf of the Auditor-General 
Auckland, New Zealand
23 August 2016
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Disclaimer

This presentation has been prepared by Genesis Energy Limited (‘Genesis Energy’) for 
information purposes only.  The information in this presentationis of a general nature and does 
not purport to be complete nor does it contain all the information required for an investor 
to evaluate an investment.  This presentation may contain projections or forward-looking 
statements regarding a variety of items. Such forward-looking statements are based upon 
current expectations and involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially 
from those stated in any forward looking statement based on a number of important factors 
and risks. 

Although management may indicate and believe that the assumptions underlying the forward-
looking statements are reasonable, any of the assumptions could prove inaccurate or incorrect 
and, therefore, there can be no assurance that the results contemplated in the forward looking 
statements will be realised. EBITDAF, underlying profit and free cash flow are non-GAAP 
(generally accepted accounting practice) measures. Information regarding the usefulness, 
calculation and reconciliation of these measures is provided in the supporting material. 
Furthermore, while all reasonable care has been taken  in compiling this presentation, to the 
maximum extent permitted by law Genesis Energy accepts no responsibility for any errors or 
omissions and no representation is made as to the accuracy, completeness or reliability of the 
information.  This presentation does not constitute investment advice 
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FY16 Overview 

• Appointment of Marc England as Chief Executive

• A resilient performance in challenging conditions

• Total Shareholder Return of 32% 

• Extension of the Rankine units

• Significant upgrade to Kupe reserves

• Restructuring of the long fuel book

• Energy Online brand refresh and Energy Retailer 
of the Year finalist

• Commenced a refresh of the Genesis Energy Board 

A year of transition
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FY16 Highlights

EBITDAF NPAT

$335.3m $184.2m

A resilient performance in challenging conditions

3% lower year on year 76% higher driven by the Kupe 
reserves upgrade and a revaluation 
of the generation assets

Energy Management: 
resilient under pressure

Oil & Gas: lower due to global factors

Customer experience:  
stable against price competition

TOTAL DIVIDENDS

16.4cps
2.5% higher than FY15

FREE CASH FLOW

$200.2m
1% higher due to coal stockpile 
management, lower interest, 
debt, capex
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Generation

Stable production in a soft market 
• Generation volumes of 6.7 TWh – in line with FY15

• Average price of $64/MWh – 15% lower than FY15

• Hydro inflows of 192 GWh – 7% below average

• Changed mix of thermal input fuel

 —  17% increase in gas generation

 —  36% reduction in coal generation

 —  Rankine Units operated 33% of FY16 on gas  
(FY15 was 9%).

ANNUAL GENERATION PROFILE
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ANNUAL GENERATION PROFILE

Generation	
  Volumes FY16	
  
(GWh)

FY15	
  
(GWh)

Variance	
  %

Gas	
  Generation 3,232 2,772 17%
Coal	
  Generation 811 1,277 (36)%
Total	
  Thermal	
  Generation 4,043 4,049 (0)%

Hydro	
  Generation 2,654 2,627 1%
Wind	
  Generation 24 22 9%
Total	
  Renewable	
  Generation 2,678 2,649 1%

Total	
  Generation 6,721 6,698 0%

Average	
  Price	
  Received	
  for	
  Generation	
  ($/MWh) $64.07 $75.41 (15)%
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Huntly’s Rankine Units

Operational extension until  
at least December 2022 
• Swaption contracts cover operational and capital costs 

until 2022

• Remain an effective thermal peaking option  
with fuel storage

• Removes concerns of supply side constraints  
beyond 2018

• Genesis Energy will continue to consider development 
of future economic generation options at the Huntly 
site, including a long term role for the Rankines

USE OF GAS VS COAL

GWh

USE OF GAS VS COAL
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Tiwai Point Impact 

De-risking the business for a  
Tiwai exit scenario 
• Genesis Energy has worked hard to mitigate the impact 

of any future closure of the Tiwai aluminium smelter
• Most likely scenario in the event of Tiwai exit would be  

to close Rankine units
• Built carve-out clauses for Tiwai exit into recently  

signed contracts:
 — 50MW supplied to Meridian Energy  
until end of 2018

 — Swaptions with Meridian Energy/Contact Energy  
to recover Rankine’s capex

• Closer to material step down in gas supply at 2020
• Increasingly balanced in the market with generation
• Fuel book less exposed than before given termination  

of coal contract in October 2015
• Strategic growth areas will diversify revenue over time

GENESIS ENERGY WHOLESALE ELECTRICITY SALES AND PURCHASES
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Fuel Management

Optimised working capital  
by reshaping fuel position 
• A focus on optimising the fuel position resulting  

in termination of Solid Energy coal contract

• 7.2PJ (12%) less fuel purchased in FY16

• Gas for generation at $7.85/GJ – 4% lower than FY15

• Wholesale gas sales of 15.3PJ – 26% lower than FY15

 — 5PJ translated to $12m of avoided losses compared 
to FY15

• Coal stockpile reduced by 43% contributing to reduced 
inventories – improved cashflow

HUNTLY COAL STOCKPILE AND COAL USED IN GENERATION

COAL STOCKPILE (’000 TONNES) COAL USED IN GENERATION (PJ)

HUNTLY COAL STOCKPILE AND COAL USED IN GENERATION
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Coal stockpile (kilotonnes) Coal used in generation (PJ)

Fuel	
  Management FY16	
  
(PJ)

FY15	
  
(PJ)

Variance	
  
(%)

Wholesale	
  Gas	
  Sales 15.3 20.6 (26)%
Total	
  Gas	
  Purchases 47.9 48.5 (1)%
Gas	
  Used	
  in	
  Internal	
  Generation 25.3 20.8 22%

Wholesale	
  Coal	
  Sales 1.0 0.7 43%
Coal	
  Purchases 3.0 9.6 (69)%
Coal	
  Used	
  in	
  Internal	
  Generation 9.3 14.2 (35)%

Coal	
  Stockpile	
  (kilotonnes) 408.4 720.9 (43)%
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Oil and Gas

Sustained production in a  
challenging global oil market 
• Kupe gas production down 3% due to a three yearly 

major plant outage.

• Production was 92% of capacity

• Kupe milestone: 10 million barrels delivered since 
commissioning

• Kupe EBITDAF impacted by external factors;

 —  41% reduction in international oil prices  
to US $43/bbl 

 —  FY16 oil sales were hedged at an average  
of US$78.11/bbl

 —  LPG sales down 11% due to extended outage  
of LPG plant

KUPE ROLLING 12M GAS PRODUCTION (PJ)

GAS PRODUCTION PJ OIL PRODUCTION KBBL

KUPE ROLLING 12M GAS AND OIL PRODUCTION
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Kupe	
  Performance FY16 FY15 Variance	
  
(%)

Gas	
  Sales	
  (PJ) 7.4 7.6 (3)%
Oil	
  Production	
  (kbbl) 427.3 502.1 (15)%
Oil	
  Sales	
  (kbbl) 416.9 500.8 (17)%
LPG	
  Sales	
  (kilotonnes) 28.1 31.6 (11)%

Oil	
  and	
  Gas	
  EBITDAF	
  ($m) 80.4 93.5 (14)%
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Kupe reserves upgraded

Significant reserves upgrade 
• Developed reserves 35% higher than 30 June 2015

• Total reserves 28% higher than 30 June 2015

• Plateau period for Kupe extended

• Phase 2 Development later than previously planned

• Phase 2 Development capex likely to be less (current 
estimate $75m)

• Business case for Phase 2 Development still to be 
assessed

Hedged Position

• FY17 oil sales volumes are 73% hedged at  
US$59.60/bbl and 72% covered at USD/NZD 64.5c 

GENESIS ENERGY SHARE OF KUPE RESERVES

CURRENT LEVELS OF KUPE HEDGING

Genesis	
  Energy	
  share	
  of	
  Kupe	
  reserves FY16	
  
(PJ)

FY15	
  
(PJ)

Variance	
  
(%)

Developed	
  Reserves	
  (2P) 73.8 54.7 35%
Undeveloped	
  Reserves	
  (2P) 46.4 39.2 18%

Total	
  Reserves	
  (2P) 120.2 93.9 28%

Current levels of
Kupe	
  hedging

Percentage	
  
hedged

Rate	
  
(US$/bbl)

Percentage	
  
hedged

Rate	
  (USD/NZD)

FY17 73% $59.60 72% 64.5c
FY18 52% $56.50 54% 63.5c

Oil	
  hedging FX	
  hedging	
  of	
  oil	
  sales
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Retail Markets

Stable against price competition 
• Competition and warm weather offset by C&I  

and LPG volumes

 —  Electricity and gas customer connections up  
7,500 (1%) in a market with high churn

 —  LPG accounts up 2,000 (15%) 

 —  Customer acquisition costs $7.5m higher 

 —  Mass market electricity pricing stable at $239/MWh

 —  C&I — Electricity and gas sales volumes increased 
5% and 3%

 —  TOU electricity and gas pricing both down  
in suppressed wholesale markets

• Launched HomeMove initiative with Spark

Retail	
  Customers	
  and	
  Volumes FY16 FY15 Variance	
  (%)

Electricity	
  Customers	
   523,174 516,574 1%
Gas	
  Customers	
   107,121 106,263 1%
LPG	
  Customers	
   15,890 13,839 15%
Total	
  Customer	
  Accounts 646,185 636,676 1%

12	
  months	
  annualised	
  churn	
  rate 20.2% 19.1% 6%

Retail	
  Electricity	
  Sales	
  (GWh) 5,669 5,414 5%
Retail	
  Gas	
  Sales	
  (PJ) 7.3 7.1 3%
Retail	
  LPG	
  Sales	
  (tonnes) 3,990 3,523 13%
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Improving Customer Conversations

Focus on the cost to acquire and serve 
• Process improvement enhances customer experience

• Implementation of Customer Relationship 
Management System

 —  Agile approach with enhancements introduced  
every three months 

 —  Remove complexity for Customer Service 
Representatives by reducing multiple systems

 —  Enhances personalisation of customer service 
offering based on value segments

 —  Will translate to reduced cost to acquire  
and cost to serve 

GENESIS ENERGY CALL VOLUMES
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Digital innovation drives customer self service

Measurable progress 
• Self service adoption growing in both brands

• Four iterations of a mobile app with new features 
including:

 — Get an estimate of your next electricity bill

 — View graphs of electricity usage

 — Order LPG bottle in two taps

• Some digital successes:

 — 35% of Energy Online customers sign up digitally

 — 18% of Energy Online customers downloaded app

 — 21% of LPG customers order through app

 — Customers using app 8-12 times a month
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Relaunch of Energy Online

Brilliantly simple 
• New Brand, Website, Mobile Apps 

• 14% Customer Growth

• No. 1 NZ Energy company on Facebook

• Digital only viral brand campaign

 — “Door knocking is so last century”; and 
“Get great deals online anytime”

 — Speedy Sign ups.  Online, Anytime

• Door Knockings ads had a total of 18m views

• Challenges industry norms – highlights intrusive door 
knocking behaviours versus relevant digital customer 
engagement 

• 7th most watched ad globally on YouTube in Sep 2015

• Finalist Energy Retailer of the Year – 2 years running

BEFORE

AFTER
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Retail LPG

15% YoY Growth, ambitious plans ahead 
• Genesis Energy remains focused on growing its LPG 

customers and retail volumes, delivering new LPG 
products and leveraging its Kupe sourced LPG

• Customer connections of 15,890 – 15% higher

• An expansion of our LPG product offering with  
a focus on consumer needs;

 — Energy Online launched LPG Products

 — Genesis Energy branded value plans

 — Mobile apps allow an easy 2-click order process

 — Bulk LPG sales channel established

 — First Bobtail truck ordered

GENESIS ENERGY RETAIL LPG GROWTH
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Retail Electricity

Stable in a high churn market 
• 26% market share

• Stable connections of 523,174 at 30 June

• 50bp below industry average churn levels

• Total volume of 5,669GWh — 4.7% higher

 — TOU sales volumes of 1,244 GWh — 29% higher

• Consumption per mass market customer declined  
by 1.6% due to warmer temperatures

ROLLING 12M ELECTRICITY SALES VOLUMES (GWH)

ELECTRICITY CUSTOMER CONNECTIONS AND MARKET SHARE
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Retail Natural Gas

Stable in a high churn market 
• 39% market share

• Total connections of 107,121 — 1% higher 

• Energy Online gas customer connection growth  
of 46% to 7,861

• New gas value plans successfully launched:  
7,260 customers

• Total retail gas sales volumes were up 3.2%  
to 7.3 PJ in FY16

• Consumption per mass market customers was  
0.2% lower due to warmer temperatures

ROLLING 12M GAS SALES VOLUMES (PJ)
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Health & Safety

The safety of our employees is a priority 
• Genesis Energy is committed to a zero harm work 

environment

• No serious incidents and only one lost time incident in 
FY16 (3 in FY15)

• TRIFR* of 2.57 was slightly up on FY15 but still 
significantly lower than FY12

• Industry wide collaboration to improve safety  
through Staylive

• Staylive was a finalist for the Health and Safety award  
in the 2016 Deloitte Energy Awards

• Recent internal survey confirms very high staff 
engagement around health and safety

*Total Recordable Injury Frequency Rate per million man hours

GENESIS ENERGY SAFETY STATISTICS
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3 2016  
Financial 
Performance

Chris Jewell 
Chief Financial Officer



FY16 Results Presentation 23

Financial Overview

Financial Highlights
• Operating Cashflow – 2% higher (+$6.3m) 
• Net Debt – $71.5m lower
• Final dividend of 8.2cps – 2.5% higher
• EBITDAF – 3% lower
• NPAT – 76% higher primarily driven by: 

– generation asset revaluation $138m 
– depletion $23m lower due to Kupe reserves upgrade

Operational drivers of financial results
• Opex – $4.4m lower
• Coal stockpile – $35m (43%) lower 
• Stay in business capex – $3.9m (9%) lower
• Kupe production –  2% lower
• Oil Price – 41% lower impacting LPG and wholesale  

gas sale revenues

Key	
  financial	
  performance FY16	
  
($m)

FY15	
  
($m)

Variance	
  
(%)

EBITDAF $ 335.3 $ 344.8 (2.8)%
Net	
  profit	
  after	
  tax $ 184.2 $ 104.8 75.8%

Earnings	
  per	
  share cps 18.4 cps 10.5 75.8%

Stay	
  in	
  business	
  capital	
  expenditure $ 39.7 $ 43.6 (8.9)%
Free	
  cash	
  flow $ 200.2 $ 197.7 1.3%

Dividends	
  per	
  share cps 16.4 cps 16.0 2.5%
Dividends	
  declared	
  as	
  a	
  %	
  of	
  FCF 81.9% 80.9% 1.2%

Net	
  debt $ 833.6 $ 905.1 (7.9)%

FY16 delivers consistent cashflow 

Significant items
• Deferral of customer acquisition 

costs $10.9m
• Write back of Rankine spares 

inventory $6.9m
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EBITDAF FY16 vs FY15

• Global oil prices impact;

 — Lower wholesale and retail gas pricing

 — Lower wholesale oil & LPG prices

• Kupe plant maintenance outage and yield decline

• Restructured fuel book meant less loss making 
wholesale gas sales

• Higher retail acquisition costs offset by deferral

• Write back of Rankine spares inventory

Global oil markets impact result

FY15 VS FY16 EBITDAFFY15 VS FY16 EBITDAF
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Operating Costs

Focused on operational efficiency 
• Reduction of $32m in operating costs since FY14 

• Operating costs – $7.3m lower in FY16

 — Write back of Rankine inventory (–$6.9m)

 — Change in provisions – largely coal import facility 
(+$5.2m)

• FTEs – 6% lower

• Cost to serve – flat at $187/customer, focus now on:

 — Reshaping call centre

 — Improved CRM systems 

 — Reduced call rates

 — Improved customer self help tools

• Operational cost efficiency remains a strategic priority

OPERATING COSTS FY15 VS FY16

REDUCTIONS IN OPERATING COSTS*
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Cashflow and Capital Expenditure

Focus on working capital and capex 
• Continuing to generate increasing free cashflow 

despite challenging trading conditions

• Operating cashflow – 2% higher – supported 
by $30m less coal purchase costs and a reduced 
coal stockpile

• Investing cashflow – 34% lower due to focus on 
stay-in-business capex and sale of non-core 
property assets

• Stay-in-business capex – $20m or 33% lower  
since FY13

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE PROFILE

CASHFLOW STATEMENT

Cashflow FY16	
  
($m)

FY15	
  
($m)

Variance	
  
(%)

Net	
  operating	
  cashflow $ 324.8	
   $ 318.5	
   2%
Net	
  investing	
  cashflow (32.1) (48.6) (34)%
Net	
  financing	
  cashflow (278.8) (272.2) 2%
Net	
  increase	
  (decrease)	
  in	
  cash $ 13.9	
   $ (2.3) N/A

Stay	
  in	
  business	
  capex $ 39.7	
   $ 43.6	
   (9)%

Free	
  cash	
  flow $ 200.2	
   $ 197.7	
   1%

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE $ MILLION

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE PROFILE

Stay in business Tekapo Oil and gas rehabilitation provision
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Funding Profile

Headroom for investment in growth 
• Strong balance sheet provides flexibility to deploy for 

investment in growth whilst maintaining dividends

• Net debt – $71.5m (8%) lower

• Current debt levels well within S&P BBB+ key credit 
rating metrics

 — EBITDAF interest cover of 6.3x

 — Net Debt to EBITDAF ratio of 2.5x

 — Adjusted gearing of 30.4%

• Retail notes of $100m issued in March 2016,  
expiring 2022

• Adjusted for impact of USPP foreign exchange and  
fair value 

GENESIS ENERGY DEBT PROFILE

Debt	
  Comparisons FY16	
  
($m)

FY15	
  
($m)

Variance	
  
(%)

Total	
  Debt $ 912.2	
   $ 958.2	
   (5)%
Cash	
  and	
  cash	
  equivalents 34.9	
   21.0	
   66%
Headline	
  Net	
  Debt $ 877.3	
   $ 937.2	
   (6)%

USPP	
  FX	
  and	
  FV	
  adjustments 43.7	
   32.1	
   36%
Adjusted	
  Net	
  Debt $ 833.6	
   $ 905.1	
   82%

Headline	
  Gearing 31.4% 34.4% (9)%
Adjusted	
  Gearing 30.4% 33.7% (10)%

Net	
  Debt/EBITDAF 2.5 2.6 (5)%
EBITDAF	
  interest	
  cover 6.3 6.2 2%

$ MILLION

DEBT PROFILE
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Dividends

• Final dividend of 8.2cps 

• Total dividends declared in FY16 of 16.4cps

 — 2.5% higher than FY15 (compared to NZ inflation  
of 0.4%)

 — 80% imputed

• Net yield of 7.7% based on share price at 30 June 2016 

• FY16 dividends equate to 82% of Free Cash Flow

• Total Shareholder Return of 32% in FY16

Increasing year on year

DIVIDENDS DECLARED AND FREE CASH FLOW
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4 Vision and 
Strategy 
Refreshed

Marc England 
Chief Executive
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Genesis Energy: A new beginning, a new vision

Reimagine Energy to be customers’ first choice for Energy Management
An integrated energy fuels business intersected by evolving technologies, focused on engaging customers with 
agile and innovative products and services to offer relevant and low cost energy management. Success will require 
substantial shifts in every part of Genesis Energy’s business.

FROM TO

Overall focus Sourcing, generating and supplying  
electrons and molecules to customers

Consumer obsessed and driver  
of shareholder value

Generation A strong operator of assets A value focused asset manager

Traditional Retail Connections and transaction driven Relationship and loyalty driven

New Distributed Energy  
and Energy Control Market follower and explorer Market leader and definer

Upstream A method to secure gas supply An integrated position to maximise  
value creation

Financial strategy Single year Budget and EBITDAF focused Multi-year value focused

Analytics Data capture and reporting Insight focused and action orientated

Organisation 3rd quartile size and incumbent behaviour Lean and agile 1st quartile performer
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Strategies that drive long term growth

Evolving Genesis Energy from Energy Supplier to Energy Manager

• New organisation design including lean corporate center
• Operational and value excellence focus in generation
• Deliver best-in-class cost to serve in retail 
• Win and keep valuable customers

• Leverage flexible systems, data analytics and digital platform 
• Target business segment customer growth
• Target LPG growth through retail and distribution capability
• Strong balance sheet to underpin long-term growth

• Leverage customer and operational data to drive insight
• Use technology to build enduring customer relationships
• Deliver comfort, convenience and control product and services
• Create an agile culture focused on execution excellence

A reorientation toward customers and a focus on value with three themes

Optimise 
the current business

Invest 
in new capabilities  

and growth

Innovate 
to build enduring 

customer relationships
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Timetable to communicate strategy
The table below identifies the upcoming events where further details  
of the Company’s strategic direction will be provided.

EVENT DATE

Annual Results Announcement 24 August 2016

Annual Report 2 September 2016

Investor Roadshow 1–18 September 2016

Annual General Meeting 19 October 2016

Investor Day 22 November 2016
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Outlook

• FY17 guidance to be provided at the Annual Shareholders Meeting on 19 October 2016 
• Trading conditions since start of FY17 have been consistent with Q4 FY16

 — Spot prices remain suppressed although Genesis Energy hydro storage is above average
 — Electricity and gas industry switching rates remain high
 — New Tiwai supply contract impacts gross margin from 1 Jan 17
 — International oil prices lower but 70% above recent lows
 — FY17 oil volumes are 74% hedged at US$59.60/bbl and USD/NZD 64.5c

• Focus remains on driving controllable factors of business performance and executing key strategic initiatives
 — Optimisation of retail, generation and corporate costs
 — Further optimisation of fuel position, and working capital
 — Full year impact of 1 April 2016 mass market price increase to flow through
 — LPG value growth anticipated
 — Full year of Kupe production planned in FY17
 — Exposure to Methanex sales reduce over time – six months remaining on current contract

Q1 FY17 will be focused on embedding new strategy and team
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Supplementary
information
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Financial Statements
BALANCE SHEET

CASHFLOW STATEMENT

PROFIT AND LOSS

DIVISIONAL EBITDAF

Profit	and	Loss FY16	
($m)

FY15	
($m)

Variance	
(%)

Revenue $ 2,011.3	 $ 2,097.6	 (4)%
Total	operating	expenses	(1) (1,676.0) (1,752.8) (4)%
EBITDAF	(2) $ 335.3	 $ 344.8	 (3)%

Depreciation	depletion	&	amortisation	 (127.5) (155.7) (18)%
Impairment 0.0	 (14.0) (100)%
Revaluation	of	generation	assets 138.0	 0.0	 N/A
Fair	value	change	gains/(losses) (26.6) 32.1	 N/A
Other	gains/(losses) (3.0) (0.2) N/A
Earnings	before	interest	and	tax $ 316.2	 $ 207.0	 53%

Interest (63.2) (66.7) (5)%
Tax (68.8) (35.5) 94%
Net	profit	after	tax $ 184.2	 $ 104.8	 76%

Earnings	per	share	(cents	per	share) cps 18.4	 cps 10.5	 76%

Stay	in	business	capital	expenditure $ 39.7	 $ 43.6	 (9)%
Free	cash	flow 200.2	 197.7	 1%
Dividends	declared 164.0	 160.0	 2%
Dividends	per	share	(cents	per	share) cps 16.4	 cps 16.0	 2%
Dividends	declared	as	a	%	of	FCF 81.9% 80.9% 1%
Net	debt	(3) $ 833.6	 $ 905.1	 (8)%

(1)	Includes	cost	of	electricity	purchases
(2)	Earnings	before	net	finance	expense,	tax,	depreciation,	amortisation,	fair	value	changes	and	other	gains	and	losses

(3)	Reported	net	debt	of	$877.3m	has	been	adjusted	for	$43.7m	of	foreign	currency	translation	and	fair	value	movements	
related	to	USD	denominated	borrowings	which	have	been	fully	hedged	with	cross	currency	interest	rate	swaps	(FY15	
$32.1m)

Divisional	EBITDAF FY16	
($m)

FY15	
($m)

Variance	
(%)

Customer	Experience $ 102.7	 $ 87.2	 18%
Energy	Management 194.1	 201.1	 (3)%
Oil	&	Gas 80.4	 93.5	 (14)%
Corporate (41.9) (37.0) 13%
Total	EBITDAF $ 335.3	 $ 344.8	 (3)%

				

Balance	Sheet FY16	
($m)

FY15	
($m)

Variance	
(%)

Cash	and	cash	equivalents $ 34.9	 $ 21.0	 66%
Other	current	assets 296.9	 325.5	 (9)%
Non-current	assets 3,446.4	 3,181.5	 8%
Total	assets $ 3,778.2	 $ 3,528.0	 7%

Total	borrowings 912.2	 958.2	 (5)%
Other	liabilities 874.8	 744.4	 18%
Total	equity $ 1,991.2	 $ 1,825.4	 9%

Net	debt	(1) $ 833.6	 $ 905.1	 (8)%
Gearing 31.4% 34.4% (9)%
EBITDAF	interest	cover 6.3	 6.2	 2%
Net	debt:	EBITDAF 2.5	 2.6	 (5)%
Net	Assets $ 1,991.2	 $ 1,825.4	 9%

				

(1)	FY2016	net	debt	of	$833.6m	has	been	adjusted	for	$43.7m	of	foreign	currency	translation	and	fair	value	
movements	related	to	USD	denominated	borrowings	which	have	been	fully	hedged	with	cross	currency	interest	
rate	swaps	(FY15	$32.1m).

Cashflow	
  Statement FY16	
  
($m)

FY15	
  
($m)

Variance	
  
(%)

Net	
  operating	
  cashflow $ 324.8	
   $ 318.5	
   2%
Net	
  investing	
  cashflow (32.1) (48.6) (34)%
Net	
  financing	
  cashflow (278.8) (272.2) 2%
Net	
  increase	
  (decrease)	
  in	
  cash $ 13.9	
   $ (2.3) N/A

Stay	
  in	
  business	
  capex 39.7	
   43.6	
   (9)%

Free	
  cash	
  flow $ 200.2	
   $ 197.7	
   1%
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Operational Data
Market	
  Information FY16 FY15 %	
  Variance Variance Generation FY16 FY15 %	
  Variance Variance
Customer-­‐focus Generation
Electricity	
  Market	
  Share	
  (%)	
  1 25.6% 25.7% (0)% (0)% Gas	
  (GWh) 3,232 2,772 17% 460	
  
Gas	
  Market	
  Share	
  (%)	
  1 39.3% 39.9% (1)% (1)% Coal	
  (GWh)	
  9 811 1,277 (36)% (466)

Total	
  Thermal	
  (GWh) 4,043 4,049 (0)% (6)
Customer	
  Experience FY16 FY15 %	
  Variance Variance Hydro	
  (GWh) 2,654 2,627 1% 27	
  
Customer-­‐focus Wind	
  (GWh) 24 22 6% 1	
  
Customer	
  Satisfaction	
  (%)	
  2 94% 96% (2)% (2)% Total	
  Renewable	
  (GWh) 2,678 2,649 1% 29	
  
Total	
  Advanced	
  Meters	
  Installed	
  To	
  Date	
  (#) 377,495 364,129 4% 13,366	
   Total	
  Generation	
  (GWh) 6,721 6,698 0% 23	
  
Customer	
  Numbers Generation	
  by	
  Location:
Total	
  Customer	
  Connections	
  (#)	
  3 653,558 646,616 1% 6,942	
   North	
  Island	
  (GWh) 5,801 5,633 3% 168	
  
Total	
  Customers	
  by	
  Product: South	
  Island	
  (GWh) 921 1,065 (14)% (144)

Electricity	
  Customer	
  Connections	
  	
  (#)	
  4 543,335 537,479 1% 5,856	
   Average	
  Price	
  Received	
  for	
  Generation	
  -­‐	
  GWAP	
  ($/MWh)	
  8 $64.07 $75.41 (15)% ($11.35)
Gas	
  Customer	
  Connections	
  (#)	
  4 110,223 109,137 1% 1,086	
   Generation	
  Emissions	
  (ktCO2) 2,194 2,408 (9)% (214)
LPG	
  Customer	
  Connections	
  (#)	
  	
  5 15,890 13,839 15% 2,051	
   Generation	
  Carbon	
  Intensity	
  (tCO2/GWh) 326 360 (9)% (33)

Volume	
  Weighted	
  Average	
  Electricity	
  Selling	
  Price	
  Mass	
  Market	
  ($/MWh)	
  6 $238.28 $238.08 0% $0.20 North	
  Island	
  Inflows	
  (GWh) 1,753 1,629 8% 124	
  
Volume	
  Weighted	
  Average	
  Electricity	
  Selling	
  Price	
  TOU	
  ($/MWh)	
  7 $116.41 $122.60 (5)% ($6.19) South	
  Island	
  Inflows	
  (GWh) 1,111 1,104 1% 7	
  
	
  	
  Mass	
  Market	
  Electricity	
  Sales	
  (GWh) 4,426 4,448 (0)% (22) Fuel
	
  	
  TOU	
  Electricity	
  Sales	
  (GWh) 1,244 967 29% 277	
   Gas	
  Purchases	
  (PJ) 47.9 48.5 (1)% (1)
Total	
  Electricity	
  Sales	
  -­‐	
  Retail	
  (GWh) 5,669 5,414 5% 255	
   Coal	
  Purchases	
  (PJ) 3.0 9.6 (69)% (7)
Electricity	
  Sales	
  -­‐	
  Wholesale	
  (GWh) 1,643 1,689 (3)% (45) Wholesale	
  Gas	
  Sales	
  (PJ) 15.3 20.7 (26)% (5)
Volume	
  Weighted	
  Average	
  Gas	
  Selling	
  Price	
  ($/GJ)	
  6 $26.99 $27.33 (1)% ($0.34) Wholesale	
  Coal	
  Sales	
  (PJ) 1.0 0.7 N/A 0	
  
	
  	
  Mass	
  Market	
  Gas	
  Sales	
  (PJ) 4.1 4.1 1% 0	
   Gas	
  Used	
  In	
  Internal	
  Generation	
  (PJ) 25.3 20.8 22% 4	
  
	
  	
  TOU	
  Gas	
  Sales	
  (PJ) 3.2 3.0 7% 0	
   Coal	
  Used	
  In	
  Internal	
  Generation	
  (PJ)	
  10 9.3 14.2 (34)% (5)
Total	
  Retail	
  Gas	
  Sales	
  (PJ) 7.3 7.1 3% 0	
   Coal	
  Stockpile	
  -­‐	
  closing	
  balance	
  (kilotonnes) 408.4 720.9 (43)% (312)
Retail	
  LPG	
  Sales	
  (tonnes) 3,990 3,523 13% 467	
  
Electricity	
  Purchases	
  -­‐	
  Retail	
  (GWh) 5,973 5,769 4% 204	
   Kupe	
  Oil	
  and	
  Gas	
  -­‐	
  Genesis	
  Energy	
  share FY16 FY15 %	
  Variance Variance
Electricity	
  Purchases	
  -­‐	
  Wholesale	
  (GWh) 1,224 1,200 2% 24	
   Gas	
  Sales	
  (PJ) 7.4 7.6 (2)% (0)
Retail	
  Gas	
  Purchases	
  (PJ) 7.4	
   7.0	
   6% 0	
   Oil	
  Production	
  (kbbl) 427.3 502.1 (15)% (75)
Average	
  Retail	
  Electricity	
  Purchase	
  Price	
  -­‐	
  LWAP	
  ($/MWh)	
  8 $63.87 $74.67 (14)% ($10.80) Oil	
  Sales	
  (kbbl) 416.9 500.8 (17)% (84)
LWAP/GWAP	
  Ratio	
  (%) 100% 99% 1% 1% Average	
  Brent	
  Crude	
  Oil	
  (USD/bbl) 43.4 73.5 (41)% (30)
Temperature	
  °C 	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  13.3	
   	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  13.0	
   2% 32% LPG	
  Sales	
  (kilotonnes) 28.1 31.6 (11)% (4)

Notes:
1	
  June	
  2015	
  and	
  2016	
  market	
  shares	
  based	
  on	
  published	
  customer	
  records	
  from	
  the	
  Electricity	
  Authority	
  and	
  Gas	
  Industry	
  Company
2	
  Based	
  on	
  the	
  survey	
  question:	
  "Overall,	
  how	
  satisfied	
  are	
  you	
  with	
  the	
  customer	
  service	
  you	
  have	
  received	
  from	
  Genesis	
  Energy	
  where	
  1	
  is	
  very	
  dissatisfied	
  and	
  10	
  is	
  very	
  satisfied?".	
  Survey	
  started	
  in	
  October	
  2013
3	
  Based	
  on	
  Genesis	
  Energy	
  customer	
  records.	
  Includes	
  vacant	
  accounts.	
  Excludes	
  LPG	
  customers.	
  Electricity	
  and	
  gas	
  customers	
  are	
  defined	
  by	
  number	
  of	
  connections.
4	
  Electricity	
  and	
  gas	
  customers	
  are	
  defined	
  by	
  number	
  of	
  connections	
  (ICP).
5	
  LPG	
  connections	
  are	
  defined	
  by	
  number	
  of	
  customers
6	
  Average	
  selling	
  price	
  for	
  mass	
  market	
  customers	
  including	
  lines/transmission	
  and	
  distribution	
  and	
  after	
  prompt	
  payment	
  discount
7	
  Average	
  selling	
  price	
  for	
  TOU	
  customers	
  including	
  lines/transmission	
  and	
  distribution	
  
8	
  Excludes	
  settlements	
  from	
  electricity	
  derivatives.
9	
  Coal	
  generation	
  is	
  calculated	
  by	
  applying	
  coal	
  burn	
  to	
  monthly	
  average	
  heat	
  rates
10	
  Results	
  have	
  been	
  revised	
  to	
  reflect	
  changes	
  in	
  coal	
  kilotonnes	
  to	
  PJ	
  conversion	
  rate	
  and	
  volume	
  methodology
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Reconciliation of EBITDAF to NPAT
• EBITDAF is a non-GAAP item but is used as a key 

metric by management to monitor performance at a 
business segment and group level

• Genesis Energy believes that reporting EBITDAF 
assists stakeholders and investors in understanding the 
Company’s operational performance

• In FY16 EBITDAF of $335.3m was down 3% on FY15

• FY16 Net Profit After Tax of $184.2m was 76% higher 
than in FY15

• Kupe reserves upgrade lowered depletion charge by 
$23m year on year

• Revaluation of generation assets reflected improved 
forward price path and lower cost of capital

• Favourable IRD ruling on powerhouse depreciation 
lowered P&L tax expense by $4.9m

Cashflow	
  Statement FY16	
  
($m)

FY15	
  
($m)

Variance	
  
(%)

EBITDAF $ 335.3	
   $ 344.8	
   (3)%

Depreciation,	
  depletion	
  and	
  amortisation $ (127.5) $ (155.7) (18)%
Impairment	
  of	
  non-­‐current	
  assets 0.0	
   (14.0) (100)%
Revaluation	
  of	
  generation	
  assets 138.0	
   0.0	
   N/A
Change	
  in	
  fair	
  value	
  of	
  financial	
  instruments (26.6) 32.1	
   (183)%
Other	
  gains	
  (losses) (3.0) (0.2) 1400%
Profit	
  before	
  net	
  finance	
  expense	
  and	
  income	
  tax $ 316.2	
   $ 207.0	
   53%

Finance	
  revenue 2.0	
   1.3	
   54%
Finance	
  expense (65.2) (68.0) (4)%
Profit	
  before	
  income	
  tax $ 253.0	
   $ 140.3	
   80%

Income	
  tax	
  expense (68.8) (35.5) 94%
Net	
  profit	
  after	
  tax $ 184.2	
   $ 104.8	
   76%
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Deferred Acquisition Costs
• In FY16 Genesis Energy changed the accounting 

treatment of its customer acquisition costs

• The rationale is to spread the cost of acquiring new 
retail electricity and gas customers over their forecast 
tenure to match the expected revenue

• The upfront acquisition and retention credits given 
to customers plus the commissions paid to direct 
sales agents to acquire customers have increased in 
response to the competitiveness in retail markets

• In FY16 gross acquisition costs were $7.5m higher than 
in FY15 and the net deferred costs were $10.9m

• All customer acquisition costs are written back/
amortised above the EBITDAF line

Deferred	Acquisition	Costs FY16	
($m)

FY15	
($m)

Variance	
($m)

Variance	
(%)

Gross	Acquisition	Costs $ 18.3	 $ 10.8	 $ 7.5	 70%

Deferred	Acquisition	Costs $ (13.7) $ 0.0	 $ (13.7) N/A
Written	Back/Amortised	Costs 2.8	 0.0	 2.8	 N/A
Net	Deferred	Costs $ (10.9) $ 0.0	 $ (10.9) N/A

Net	Costs	Expensed $ 7.4	 $ 10.8	 $ (3.4) (31)%
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Free Cash Flow
• Free Cash Flow (FCF) is a key metric showing ability to 

pay cash dividends

• Calculated using EBITDAF, finance expense tax paid, 
and stay in business capital expenditure

• In FY16 FCF of $200.2m was up 1% on FY15 after 
adjusting for the tax impact of the gain on revaluation of 
the generation assets in FY16

Free	
  Cash	
  Flow FY16	
  
($m)

FY15	
  
($m)

Variance	
  
(%)

EBITDAF $ 335.3	
   $ 344.8	
   (3)%

Less	
  finance	
  expense 65.2	
   68.0	
   (4)%
Less	
  income	
  tax	
  expense 68.8	
   35.5	
   94%
Less	
  stay	
  in	
  business	
  capital	
  expenditure 39.7	
   43.6	
   (9)%
Less	
  tax	
  effect	
  on	
  asset	
  revaluation (38.6) 0.0	
   N/A
Free	
  Cash	
  Flow $ 200.2	
   $ 197.7	
   1%
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Debt Profile 
• $100 million of retailable bonds issued in March 2016

 — Coupon of 4.14% compared  well to 7.65%  for  
$105 million of bonds maturing  at the same time

• Revolving credit facilities restructured in early 2016:

 — Increasing liquidity headroom and maturity profile 
New pricing and tenor agreed ahead of general 
increase in bank margins 

• $450m of revolving credit facilities were undrawn  
at 30 June 2016

• Average maturity tenor is 7.5 years

$ MILLION

DEBT PROFILE

Wholesale domestic Revolving credit – undrawn Revolving credit – drawn
USPP Capital bonds Retailable bonds
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GENESIS ENERGY DEBT PROFILE
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Net Debt to EBITDAF ratio
• Net Debt to EBITDAF ratio is the key metric focused 

on by credit ratings agencies including Standard and 
Poors

• In order to maintain a BBB+ rating the target range for 
the EBITDAF ratio is 2.5x to 2.8x

• Note that S&P calculation of Net debt/EBITDAF 
includes a number of adjustments to reported numbers 
eg USPP foreign currency translation 1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

5.0

FY16*

* FY15 and FY16 net debt adjusted for USPP.
FY15*FY14FY13FY12

NET DEBT TO EBITDAF RATIO

NET DEBT TO EBITDAF

TARGET RANGE

GENESIS ENERGY NET DEBT TO EBITDAF
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Thank you
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